EDGAROnline

LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS INC

FORM 10-Q

(Quarterly Report)

Filed 08/06/12 for the Period Ending 06/30/12

Address

Telephone
CIK
Symbol
SIC Code
Industry
Sector
Fiscal Year

1025 ELDORADO BOULEVARD

BLDG 2000

BROOMFIELD, CO 80021

7208881000

0000794323

LVLT

4813 - Telephone Communications, Except Radiotelephone
Communications Services

Services

12/31

Powere 4 &y EDGAROnline

http://www.edgar-online.com
© Copyright 2015, EDGAR Online, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Online, Inc. Terms of Use.


http://www.edgar-online.com

Table of Contents

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Quarterly Period Ended June 30, 2012
or

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period to

Commission file number 0-15658

LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Delaware 47-0210602
(State of Incorporation) (I.LR.S. Employer
Identification No.)

1025 Eldorado Blvd., Broomfield, CO 80021-8869
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zipa)
(720) 888-1000
(Registrant’s telephone number,
including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @b tiled all reports required to be filed by Seeti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act 0f4193
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shqréeiod that the registrant was required to filehsteports), and (2) has been subject to suctyfilin
requirements for the past 90 days. ¥g#s No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant bisnitted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&teb site, if any, every Interactive Data File
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te Rb of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapderjng the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to submit@ost such files). Ydgl NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantla&rge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting comp&see
definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelezd filer,” and “smaller reporting company” in Rul&b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filéx] Accelerated filerd

Non-accelerated fileld Smaller reporting companid
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantdbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exdge Act). Yedd No
The number of shares outstanding of each clagsedfsuer’'s common stock, as of August 3, 2012:

Common Stock: 217,115,761 shares
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Part | - Financial Information
Iltem 1. Financial Statements

LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(unaudited)

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
(dollars in millions, except share and per share da) 2012 2011 2012 2011
Revenue $ 1,58t $ 91 % 3172 % 1,82i
Costs and Expenses Exclusive of Depreciation and
Amortization shown separately below:
Cost of Revenue 64¢ 347 1,30¢ 704
Depreciation and Amortization 191 20¢€ 37¢ 40¢
Selling, General and Administrative 61C 357 1,232 714
Restructuring Charges 4 — 8 —
Total Costs and Expenses 1,45: 91C 2,92 1,82
Operating Income 13z 3 24¢ —
Other Income (Expense):
Interest income 1 — 2 —
Interest expense (181) (260) (370 (317)
Loss on extinguishment of debt, net — (23 (62) (43
Other, net (7) 3 2 6
Total Other Expense (187) (180 (427) (3549
Loss Before Income Taxes (54) @77 (17¢) (359
Income Tax Expense (8) 3 (22 (30
Loss from Continuing Operations (62 (280) (200 (389
Loss from Discontinued Operations, Net — (0] — 2
Net Loss $ 62 $ (181) $ (200) $ (38€)
Basic and Diluted Loss per Share
Loss per Share from Continuing Operations $ (0.29 % (1.5¢) $ (099 $ (3.40
Loss per Share from Discontinued Operations — (0.00) — (0.02)
Net Loss $ (0.29 % (159 % (099 $ (3.42)
Shares Used to Compute Basic and Diluted Loss per
Share" (in thousands) 216,39¢ 113,58¢ 213,08: 112,83t

*Adjusted to give effect to the 1 for 15 reversecktsplit that became effective on October 19, 2@EE Note 1 - Organization and Summary

of Significant Accounting Policies.

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss

(unaudited)
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,

(dollars in millions) 2012 2011 2012 2011
Net Loss $ (62 $ (181) $ (200 $ (38€)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before
Income Taxes:

Foreign Currency Translation (66) 8 (32 50

Unrealized Holding Gain (Loss) on Interest

Rate Swaps 9 2 16 8

Other, net 1 — 2 1)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Before
Income Taxes (56) 6 (14 57
Income Tax Related to Items of Other
Comprehensive Income — — — —
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of
Income Taxes (56) 6 (14) 57
Comprehensive Loss $ (118 $ @avs $ (2149 $ (329)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Supplementary Stockholders' Equity Information
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (L0sS)
For the six months ended June 30, 2012

(unaudited)
Net Foreign Unrealized Holding
Currency Gain (Loss) on
Translation Interest Rate
(dollars in millions) Adjustment Swaps Other Total
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 39 $ 90 $ 29 $ (80)
Change 32 16 2 (14)
Balance at June 30, 2012 $ 7% (749 $ (27 $ (99

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(unaudited)
June 30, December 31,

(dollars in millions, except share and per share da) 2012 2011
Assets:
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 733 91¢

Restricted cash and securities 8 10

Receivables, less allowances for doubtful accooh$30 and $21, respectively 68¢ 64¢€

Other 167 131
Total Current Assets 1,597 1,707
Property, Plant and Equipment, net of accumulaggatetiation of $7,977 and $7,678, respectively 8,07¢ 8,13¢
Restricted Cash and Securities 49 51
Goodwill 2,497 2,541
Other Intangibles, net 30¢ 35¢
Other Assets, net 42C 39&
Total Assets $ 12,947 13,18¢
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 69€ 747

Current portion of long-term debt 222 65

Accrued payroll and employee benefits 14C 20¢

Accrued interest 22E 21€

Current portion of deferred revenue 25C 264

Other 11¢ 157
Total Current Liabilities 1,65¢ 1,65¢
Long-Term Debt, less current portion 8,19( 8,38t
Deferred Revenue, less current portion 86¢ 88t
Other Liabilities 1,021 1,067
Total Liabilities 11,73¢ 11,99¢
Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity:

Preferred stock, $.01 par value, authorized 10(@shares: no shares issued or outstanding — —

Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 343,333sB@res at June 30, 2012 and 293,333,333 at Dece&hp2011:

216,557,159 issued and outstanding at June 30,20d207,913,428 issued and outstanding at Dece®ib@011 2 2

Additional paid-in capital 13,941 13,70¢

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (94) (80)

Accumulated deficit (12,63%) (12,43%)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 1,214 1,19t

12,947 13,18¢

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $

See accompanying notes to consolidated financassients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(unaudited)
Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
(dollars in millions) 2012 2011
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net loss $ (200) $ (38€)
Loss from discontinued operations — 2
Loss from continuing operations (200) (389
Adjustments to reconcile loss from continuing otieres to net cash provided by
operating activities of continuing operations:
Depreciation and amortization 37¢ 40¢
Non-cash compensation expense attributable to steekds 53 42
Loss on extinguishments of debt, net 61 43
Accretion of debt discount and amortization of debtiance costs 21 27
Accrued interest on long-term debt, net 11 23
Deferred income taxes 3 27
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment ahdrassets — (©)
Other, net 12 (5)
Changes in working capital items:
Receivables 43 (26)
Other current assets (32 (16)
Payables (56) 2
Deferred revenue (23 4)
Other current liabilities 77) (©)]
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities of Countinyy Operations 10¢ 132
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures (31¢) (237)
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash and sesynitet 4 39
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and eqeift and other assets 5 4
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities of Continuidgerations (309) (267)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Long-term debt borrowings, net of issuance costs 88C 76€
Payments on and repurchases of long-term debtdimg current portion and
refinancing costs (863) (662)
Proceeds from stock options exercised 1 —
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities of Contitg Operations 18 104
Discontinued Operations:
Net cash used in operating activities — Q)
Net cash used in investing activities — (©)]
Net Cash Used in Discontinued Operations — 4)
Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash Equigalen 2 3
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (185) (32
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 91¢ 61€
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $ 732 % 584

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash interest paid $ 336 $ 267
Income taxes paid, net of refunds $ 19 $ 1



Non-cash Financing Activities:
Long-term debt conversion into equity
Premium on long-term debt conversion into equity
Accrued interest conversion into equity
Long-term debt issued and proceeds placed int@escr
Long-term debt issued in exchange transaction
Long-term debt retired in exchange transaction

© O BH BH BH B

See accompanying notes to consolidated financassients.
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LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounihg Policies
Description of Business

Level 3 Communications, Inc. and subsidiaries {empany" or "Level 3") is a facilities based prdet (that is, a provider that owns
or leases a substantial portion of the plant, ptymnd equipment necessary to provide its seryioka broad range of integrated
communications services. The Company created itsraanications network by constructing its own asaets through a combination of
purchasing other companies and purchasing or lgdadailities from others. Level 3's network is aternational, facilities based
communications network. The Company designed itwor to provide communications services that emlod take advantage of rapidly
improving underlying optical, Internet Protocol ngputing and storage technologies.

On October 4, 2011, a subsidiary of Level 3 conguléts amalgamation with Global Crossing Limite@I@bal Crossing"), which
thereby became a wholly owned indirect subsididtphe Company through a tax free, stock for stwakgaction (the "Amalgamation"). See
Note 2- Events Associated with the Amalgamation of Gldbadssing.

Until November 2011, the Company also was engagedal mining through its two 50% owned joint-vaetsurface mines, one each
in Montana and Wyoming. The Company completed #he af its coal mining business on November 14,12@ke Note 4 - Dispositions.

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include tomants of Level 3 Communications, Inc. and subsiées in which it has a controlli
interest. Prior to the disposition of the coal mmbusiness during the fourth quarter of 2011 Gbmpany's 50%wned mining joint venture
were consolidated on a pro rata basis. All sigaifidntercompany accounts and transactions haveddgginated. The accompanying
consolidated financial statements have been prdpar@ccordance with accounting principles gengraticepted in the United States
("GAAP").

As part of its consolidation policy, the Companwysiglers its controlled subsidiaries, investmenthébusiness in which the Company
is not the primary beneficiary or does not havedfie control but has the ability to significanithfluence operating and financial policies,
and variable interests resulting from economicrageanents that give the Company rights to econoisis ior rewards of a legal entity.

The accompanying consolidated balance sheet asadrbber 31, 2011, which was derived from auditetsalidated financial
statements, and the unaudited interim consolid@&tedcial statements as of June 30, 2012 and #othiee and six months ended June 30,
2012 and 2011 have been prepared pursuant toléseand regulations of the Securities and Exch&@wamission (the “SEC”) for quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q and do not include all ofittiermation and note disclosures required by GAAPdomplete financial statements.
These financial statements should be read in cotipmwith the Company’s audited consolidated fiiahstatements and notes thereto
included in the Company’s Form 10-K, as amendedihie year ended December 31, 2011. In the opioidghe Company’s management,
these financial statements contain all adjustm@uissisting only of normal recurring adjustmentsgessary for a fair presentation of
financial position, results of operations and c#sivs at the dates and for the interim periods @né=d herein. The results of operations for an
interim period are not necessarily indicative @ thsults of operations expected for a full figezdr.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statiets in conformity with GAAP requires managemennike estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etassd liabilities, disclosure of contingent assetd liabilities and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reported periddaA@sults could differ from these estimates.

Effective after the close of trading on October2@11, the Company completed a 1 for 15 reverssk fplit as previously approved by
the Company's stockholders. Proportional adjusteneete made to the Company's outstanding convedidbt, warrants, equity awards and
to its equity compensation plans to reflect thesrsg stock split. No fractional shares were issm@dnnection with the reverse stock split, as
stockholders who would otherwise hold a fracticstare of common stock received a cash paymergurofi that fractional share. All
references herein to common stock and per shaachdae been retrospectively adjusted to reflectalierse stock split.




Table of Contents
Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior period consolidatedificial statements and accompanying footnotes ieee reclassified to conform to
the current year's presentation.

(2) Events Associated with the Amalgamation of Gladd Crossing

On October 4, 2011, a subsidiary of Level 3 conguléts amalgamation with Global Crossing, whichame a wholly owned indirect
subsidiary of the Company through a tax free, sfoclstock transaction. As a result of the Amalgtom (i) each issued and outstanding
common share of Global Crossing was exchanged&@hares of Level 3 common stock (unadjusted ferltfor 15 reverse stock split
completed on October 19, 2011), including the aased rights under the Company’s Rights Agreematit Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as
rights agent (the “Amalgamation Consideration”) #iijdeach issued and outstanding share of Globas€ing’s 2% cumulative senior
convertible preferred stock was exchanged for thrakyamation Consideration, plus an amount equéld@ggregate accrued and unpaid
dividends thereon. In addition, (i) the outstandiegted options to purchase Global Crossing conshanres were modified into vested
options to purchase a number of shares of Levalddtemon stock equal to 1nes the number of Global Crossing common shavesred b
such Global Crossing options, and (ii) the issuedi @utstanding restricted stock units covering @l@krossing common shares, to the extent
applicable in accordance with their terms, vestadisettled for a number of shares of Level 3's comstock equal to 16 times the number of
Global Crossing common shares covered by suchatestrstock units.

In connection with the closing of the Amalgamatibayel 3 Financing, Inc. ("Level 3 Financing") andex its existing credit agreement
to incur an additional $650 million of borrowinds@ugh an additional tranche (the "Tranche B lIff&oan."). In addition, the $1.2 billion
of proceeds from the initial and additional isst&n€8.125% Senior Notes due 2019 in June and2lilly (see Note 8 — Long-Term Debt)
by an indirect wholly owned subsidiary were depbinto an escrow account. On October 4, 2011gvalg the consummation of the
Amalgamation and the satisfaction of certain esaml@ase conditions, the 8.125% Senior Notes weseraed by Level 3 Financing (the
“Notes Assumption”), and the funds were releasethfthe escrow account. The net aggregate procemustifie Tranche B Il Term Loan and
8.125% Senior Notes were used to refinance ceetasting indebtedness of Global Crossing in corinaatith the closing of the
Amalgamation and for general corporate purposes.

As a result of the Amalgamation, the Company isamatoximately 88.53 million shares of common st@kusted for the October 19,
2011 1 for 15 reverse stock split, to former haddefr Global Crossing common shares and Global @rg'ss2% cumulative senior
convertible preferred stock, and Level 3 causeddfirancing of approximately $1.36 billion of GEltCrossing's outstanding consolidated
debt.

Based on (i) the number of Level 3 shares issi@8153 million as adjusted for the 1 for 15 revestak split completed on October 19,
2011), (ii) the closing stock price of Level 3 commstock as of October 3, 2011 ( $21.15 as adjdstetthe 1 for 15 reverse stock split
completed on October 19, 2011), and (iii) the adliBlobal Crossing refinanced ( $1.36 billion )etBompany estimates that the aggregate
consideration for acquisition accounting, includagsumed debt, approximated $3.4 billion . Theimtst stock units covering Global
Crossing common shares settled for Level 3 shdresmomon stock were reduced in settlement of emgddpcome and payroll tax
withholding obligations and the corresponding amsurfi approximately $81 million were paid in caShe premium paid by Level 3 in this
transaction is attributable to strategic beneiiitsluding a significantly expanded IP/optical netlwavith global reach including South
America, Asia and the Pacific region, an improveetli profile and reduced financial leverage attrédl to enhanced financial and operati
scale, and the opportunity for investment and netveapansion. The Company has a comprehensiveofiortff voice, video, and data
services, which operates on a unique global ses\ptaform anchored by subsea and terrestrial Bpéc networks in North America,
Europe, and Latin America. The goodwill associattth this transaction is not expected to be dedhlefior income tax purposes.

The combined results of operations of Level 3 atab@ Crossing are included in the Company's codatdd results of operations
beginning in October 2011. The assets acquirediahbitities assumed of Global

9
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Crossing were recognized at their acquisition €&tevalue. The purchase price allocation of acegliassets and assumed liabilities, including
the assignment of goodwill to reporting units, rieggl extensive analysis and is expected to be atribho later than October 4, 2012. The
following is a preliminary allocation of purchasege based on information currently available. Tihal identification of all the intangible
assets acquired and the determination of the psecpiace allocation may be significantly differémm the preliminary allocation reflected
below.

Preliminary Purchase Price
Allocation

(dollars in millions)

Assets:
Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash $ 22¢
Property, Plant, and Equipment 3,09¢
Goodwill 1,07(C
Identifiable Intangibles 10€
Other Assets 681
Total Assets 5,181
Liabilities:
Long-term Debt (1,559
Other Liabilities (1,66%)
Total Liabilities (3,219
Total Estimated Consideration $ 1,962

Level 3 entered into certain transactions with @ldbrossing prior to completing the Amalgamatiohgneby Level 3 received cash for
communications services to be provided in the sytwhich it accounted for as deferred revenue. fessalt of the Amalgamation, Level 3 ¢
no longer amortize this deferred revenue into egsand accordingly, reduced the purchase prickedpp the net assets acquired in the
Amalgamation by $77 million , the amount of the meetized deferred revenue as of the acquisitior.dat

As a result of refinements to the preliminary p@asd price allocation that were made during thersirths ended June 30, 2012, there
were changes to the initial amount of goodwill deti@ed in the fourth quarter of 2011, which havereeflected in the above table. The
refinements were primarily a result of changedpurchase price allocation for estimated taxatada allowances and reserves. There were
no significant changes in the purchase price allosaluring the three months ended June 30, 2012.

The following unaudited pro forma financial infortizan presents the combined results of Level 3 aluh&@ Crossing as if the
completion of the Amalgamation had occurred asaatiary 1, 2010.

(dollars in millions, except per share data) Three Months Ended June 30, 2011 Six Months Ended June 30, 2011

Total Revenue $ 1,58t $ 3,13¢
Net Loss $ (19€) $ (428
Net Loss per share $ 0.97) $ (2.19)

These results include certain adjustments, prigndrik to a net decrease in depreciation and aratidizexpense due to the Company,
in connection with the Amalgamation, increasingékémated useful lives of the acquired conduigifiand certain transmission equipment
while increasing the fair value of tangible andaigible

10
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assets, decreases in interest expense due to3'svwssuance of incremental debt in order to redaedrefinance Global Crossing debt that
had higher interest rates than the incrementahfimay, and to eliminate historical transactionsigen Level 3 and Global Crossing. The pro
forma financial information is not intended to repent or be indicative of the actual results ofratens of Level 3 that would have been
reported had the Amalgamation been completed omadgri, 2010, nor is it representative of futurengping results of the Company. The
forma information does not include any operatirficefncies or cost savings that Level 3 may achisith respect to combining the
companies.

Acquisition related costs include transaction cgsish as legal, accounting, valuation, and othefiegsional services as well as
integration costs such as severance and retert@muisition related costs have been recorded iingelgeneral and administrative expense
and restructuring charges in the Company's coretelitistatements of operations during the periodstizh costs were incurred. Since the
acquisition date, Level 3 incurred total acquisitielated transaction costs of approximately $4ianithrough June 30, 2012, which is
unchanged from March 31, 2012. Since the acquisitéte, Level 3 incurred total acquisition relagegration costs of approximately $64
million through June 30, 2012. In addition, Leved@dects to incur additional integration relatedtsdhrough the remainder of 2012.

In April 2011, Level 3 adopted a Stockholder Rightan to protect its U.S. federal net operating losrryforwards from certain Internal
Revenue Code Section 382 limitations. On May 2422the stockholders of the Company ratified subtption. This plan was designed to
deter trading that would result in a change of rr{as defined in that Code Section), and theeefwotect the Company's ability to use its
historical federal net operating loss carryforwardthe future.

(3) Loss Per Share

The Company computes basic net loss per sharevidirdj net loss for the period by the weighted agernumber of shares of comn
stock outstanding during the period. Diluted nsslper share is computed by dividing net lossHermteriod by the weighted average number
of shares of common stock outstanding during thi®mgend including the dilutive effect of commoogh that would be issued assuming
conversion or exercise of outstanding convertiloiges, stock options, stock based compensation aveaud other dilutive securities. The
effect of approximately 35 million and 47 milliohares issuable pursuant to the various seriesmfectible notes outstanding at June 30,
2012 and June 30, 2011, respectively, have not inerded in the computation of diluted loss pearshbecause their inclusion would have
been anti-dilutive to the computation. In addititime effect of the approximately 6 million and 3lion stock options, outperform stock
options, restricted stock units and warrants ontitay at June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011, respggthave not been included in the
computation of diluted loss per share because ihgirsion would have been anti-dilutive to the guration.

(4) Dispositions

Level 3, through its two 50% owned joint-venturgfage mines, one each in Montana and Wyoming, sodd primarily through long-
term contracts with public utilities. In Novembd¥12, Level 3 completed the sale of its coal mirbnginess to Ambre Energy Limited as |
of its long-term strategy to focus on core busirgssrations. As a result of the transaction, athefassets and liabilities associated with the
coal mining business have been removed from Lesdddlance sheet and the Company recognized agdfre transaction of approximately
$72 million , which was included in the consolidhttatements of operations within "Income from Brgmued Operations" in the fourth
quarter of 2011. The financial results of the aoaling business were included in the Company'saateted results of operations through
the date of sale, and the three and six month geeaded June 30, 2011 have been revised to ridfepresentation within discontinued
operations.

The following amounts relate to the operationsheftoal business and were derived from historinahtial information and have been

segregated from continuing operations and repasetdiscontinued operations in the ConsolidateceB8tants of Operations (dollars in
millions):

11
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Revenue

Cost of Revenue

Depreciation and Amortization

Selling, General, and Administrative
Total Costs and Expenses

Operating Loss

Total Other Expense

Loss From Discontinued Operations, Net

(5) Acquired Intangible Assets

Three Months Ended June 30, 2011

Six Months Ended June 30, 2011

19 $ 34
18 34

1 2
x ;
1 )
E) $ ;)

Identifiable acquisition-related intangible assetf June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 wedlaw$ (dollars in millions):

June 30, 2012

Finite-Lived Intangible Assets:
Customer Contracts and Relationships
Trademarks
Patents and Developed Technology

Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets:
Vyvx Trade Name

December 31, 2011

Finite-Lived Intangible Assets:
Customer Contracts and Relationships
Trademarks
Patents and Developed Technology

Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets:
Vyvx Trade Name

Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization
$ 77 $ (606) $ 16¢
55 (10) 45
15¢ (96) 62
98¢ (712) 27¢€
32 — 32
$ 1,02 $ (712) $ 30¢
$ 7€ $ (571 $ 20E
55 ©) 52
15¢ (89) 69
98¢ (662) 32¢€
32 — 32
$ 1,021 $ (667 $ 35¢

The gross carrying amount of identifiable acquisitrelated intangible assets in the table abosaligect to change due to foreign
currency fluctuations, as a portion of the Compaidentifiable acquisition-related intangible assae related to foreign subsidiaries.

12
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Acquired finite-lived intangible asset amortizatiexpense was $ 25 million and $ 50 million for theee and six months ended June 30,
2012 and $ 24 million and $ 49 million for the tr@nd six months ended June 30, 2011 .

At June 30, 2012 , the weighted average remainsedulilives of the Company's acquired finite-liiathngible assets was 2.4 years for
customer contracts and relationships, 4.5 yearpdtents and developed technology and 3.3 yeatsaiemarks.

As of June 30, 2012 , estimated amortization expémsthe Company’s finite-lived acquisition-reldt@tangible assets over the next
five years and thereafter is as follows (dollarsitlions):

2012 (remaining six months) $ 41
2013 72
2014 61
2015 45
2016 27
2017 13
Thereafter 17

$ 27¢€

(6) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company'’s financial instruments consist of casth cash equivalents, restricted cash and sexjr#&ccounts receivable, accounts
payable, interest rate swaps and long-term deblu@ng the current portion) as of June 30, 28hd December 31, 2011. The carrying va
of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cashemdises, accounts receivable, accounts payaapitad leases and other liabilities
approximated their fair values at June 30, 2012@R@ckmber 31, 2011. The interest rate swaps aoeded in the consolidated balance sheets
at fair value. See Note 7 - Derivative Financiatioments and Note 13 - Subsequent Events. Thgimgwalue of the Company’s long-term
debt, including the current portion, reflects thigimal amounts borrowed net of unamortized dis¢s@amd premiums and was $8.4 billiand
$8.5 billion as of June 30, 2012 and December @11 2respectively.

GAAP defines fair value as the price that woulddgeived from selling an asset or paid to transfibility in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement\déten determining the fair value measurementsdistosures for assets and liabilities
required to be recorded at fair value, the Compmamsiders the principal or most advantageous mankehich it would transact and
considers assumptions that market participants dvasgé when pricing the asset or liability, suclin@grent risk, transfer restrictions, and risk
of nonperformance.

Fair Value Hierarchy

GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy that rezguan entity to maximize the use of observabletghand minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.faltrevalue measurement of each class of assetBahilities is dependent upon its
categorization within the fair value hierarchy, &sipon the lowest level of input that is significto the fair value measurement of each
of asset and liability. GAAP establishes three et inputs that may be used to measure fair value

Level 1 —Quoted prices in active markets for identical &sse liabilities.

Level 2—Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices ssctpumted prices for similar assets or liabilitigsoted prices in markets with
insufficient volume or infrequent transactions ¢lestive markets); or model-derived
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valuations in which all significant inputs are obble or can be derived principally from or comwodted by observable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or litiei.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs to the valuation methodoldgt aire significant to the measurement of fair @atiassets or liabilities.

The table below presents the fair values for eda$smf Level 3 liabilities as well as the input levels used ébedmine these fair valu
as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

Fair Value Measurement Using

Quoted Prices Significant
Total in Active Other
Carrying Value Markets for Observable
in Consolidated Identical Assets Inputs
Balance Sheet (Level 1) (Level 2)
June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

(dollars in millions)

Liabilities Recorded at Fair
Value in the Financial
Satements:

Derivatives:

Interest Rate Swap Liabilitie

(included in other non-curre

liabilities) $ 74 % 90 $ — 3 — 3 74 % a0
Total Derivative Liabilities
Recorded at Fair Value in
the Financial Statements $ 74 $ 90 $ — 8 — 8 74 $ 90

Liabilities Not Recorded at
Fair Value in the Financial
Satements:

Long-term Debt, including the
current portion:

Term Loans $ 2,56¢ $ 2561 $ 2561 $ 2,51¢ $ — 8 —
Senior Notes 4,807 4,71¢ 5,07t 4,82z — —
Convertible Notes 843 93¢ 284 247 76C 834
Commercial Mortgage 64 65 — — 71 73
Capital Leases and Other 12¢ 162 — — 12¢ 162

Total Long-term Debt,

including

the current portion: $ 8,41z $ 8,45 $ 7,92¢ $ 7587 $ 96C $ 1,07(

Derivatives
The interest rate swaps are measured in accoraéticehe GAAP Fair Value Measurements and Disclesguidance using discounted

cash flow techniques that use observable marketsnguch as LIBOR-based forward yield curves, #vdwrates, and the specific swap rate
stated in each of the swap agreements.
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Term Loans

The fair value of the Term Loans was approxima$2y6 billion and $2.5 billion at June 30, 2012 &@etember 31, 2011, respectively.
The fair value of each loan is based on the Jun@@2 and December 31, 2011 trading quotes asdadWby large financial institutions that
trade in the Company’s Term Loans. The pricing gaqrovided by these market participants incorgdté8OR curve expectations, interest
spread, corporate and loan credit ratings, matdetg (March 2014 and September 2018) and liquidityong other loan characteristics and
relative value across other instruments of sintdams. The interest spread for the $1.4 billionnEte A Term Loan is LIBOR plus 2.25%
(aggregate principal value) and LIBOR plus 4.25%hwi LIBOR floor of 1.5% for the Tranche B Il andafiche B Il Term Loans,
respectively. See Note 8 - Long-Term Debt for dstai

The Term Loans are secured by a pledge of theyemiérests in certain U.S.-based subsidiariesesfl 3 Financing; 65% of the equity
interests in each of Level 3 Financing’s Canadigvsgliary, and its Bermuda subsidiary that indiseotvns Global Crossing's non-U.S.
subsidiaries; and liens on the assets of Level@@onications, Inc. and certain U.S.-based subsédiaf Level 3 Financing. In addition,
Level 3 Communications, Inc. and certain U.S.-basdssidiaries of Level 3 Financing have providdddnd unconditional guarantees of the
obligations under the Term Loans.

Senior Notes

The estimated fair value of the Company’s SenioleN@pproximated $5.1 billion and $4.8 billion abd 30, 2012 and December 31,
2011, respectively, based on market prices. Thevédile of each instrument was based on the Jun203@ and December 31, 2011 trading
guotes as provided by large financial institutitimet trade in the Company’s securities. The pricjogtes provided by these market
participants incorporate spreads to the Treasumnegisecurity coupon (which ranges from LIBOR pug5% to 11.875% ), corporate and
security credit ratings, maturity date (rangingnird014 to 2020) and liquidity, among other secuitgracteristics and relative value at both
the borrower entity level and across other seasritif similar terms.

The 11.875% Senior Notes due 2019 were issuedébgtimpany and are not guaranteed by any of the @oytgppsubsidiaries. The
remaining Senior Notes are obligations of Leveir&aRcing, Inc. and are all fully and unconditiogajuaranteed by Level 3
Communications, Inc. and Level 3 CommunicationsCLL

Convertible Notes

The estimated fair value of the Company’s activedgled 6.5% Convertible Senior Notes due 2016 ywasoximately $284 million at
June 30, 2012 and $247 million at December 31, 20hé fair value of the Company’s actively tradezhertible Notes is based on the
trading quotes as of June 30, 2012 and Decemb&@031, provided by large financial institutions thaide in the Company’s securities. The
estimated fair value of the Company’s Convertibtedd that are not actively traded, such as the @#v€rtible Senior Notes due 2015, the
7% Convertible Senior Notes due 2015, Series B th@d5% Convertible Senior Notes due 2013, apprated $760 million at June 30,
2012 and $834 million at December 31, 2011. A paorbf the Company's 15% Convertible Senior Notes2003 were exchanged for equity
during the first quarter of 2012, as discussedateM - Long-Term Debt. To estimate the fair vadfithe Convertible Notes that are not
actively traded, Level 3 used a Black-Scholes w&unamodel and an income approach using discourast flows. The most significant
inputs affecting the valuation are the pricing @soprovided by market participants that incorposateads to the Treasury curve, security
coupon (ranging from 7% to 15% ), convertible opélity, corporate and security credit ratings, miatudate (ranging from 2013 to 2015),
liquidity, and other equity option inputs, suchtlas risk-free rate, underlying stock price, stiikece of the embedded derivative, estimated
volatility and maturity inputs for the option compent and for the bond component, among other sgatraracteristics and relative value at
both the borrower entity level and across otheusges with similar terms. The fair value of edobtrument is obtained by adding together
the value derived by discounting the security’spmuor interest payment using a risk-adjusted disteoate and the value calculated from the
embedded equity option based on the estimatedilitylaf the Company’s stock price, conversion rafehe particular Convertible Note,
remaining time to maturity, and rigkee rate. The Convertible Notes are unsecuredatitins of Level 3 Communications, Inc. No subsid
of Level 3
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Communications, Inc. has provided a guaranteeeoCttnvertible Notes.
Commercial Mortgage

The fair value of the Commercial Mortgage was agjpnately $71 million at June 30, 2012 and $73 millat December 31, 2011,
respectively, as compared to the carrying amoui$é4 million and $65 million , respectively. Th@@mercial Mortgage is not actively
traded and its fair value is estimated by managénmng a valuation model based on an income apprdéhe significant inputs used to
estimate fair value of this debt instrument usiiggodunted cash flows include the anticipated scleeldmortgage payments and observable
market yields on other actively traded debt of Emtharacteristics and collateral type.

The Commercial Mortgage is a secured obligatioH@QfRealty, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of thengpany. HQ Realty, Inc.’s
obligations under the Commercial Mortgage are sgtby a first priority lien on the Company’s heaadears campus located at 1025
Eldorado Boulevard, Broomfield, Colorado 80021 aedain HQ Realty, Inc. cash and reserve accounts.

The assets of HQ Realty, Inc. are not availabkatisfy any third party obligations other than #ho$ HQ Realty, Inc. In addition, the
assets of the Company and its subsidiaries otlaer Q Realty, Inc. are not available to satisfydbigations of HQ Realty, Inc.

(7) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instrumeprisparily interest rate swaps, to manage its exposufluctuations in interest rate
movements. The Company’s primary objective in margamterest rate risk is to decrease the volgtditits earnings and cash flows affected
by changes in the underlying rates. To achievedbjsctive, the Company enters into financial datikes, primarily interest rate swap
agreements, the values of which change in the djgpdisection of the anticipated future cash flowke Company has floating rate long-term
debt (see Note 8 - Long-Term Debt). These obligatiexpose the Company to variability in interestnpents due to changes in interest rates.
If interest rates increase, interest expense iseedonversely, if interest rates decrease, sttegpense also decreases. The Company has
designated its interest rate swap agreements hdloashedges. Swaps designated as cash flow hedgelse the receipt of variable-rate
amounts from a counterparty in exchange for the @ making fixed-rate payments over the liveshefagreements without exchange of
the underlying notional amount. The change in #ievialue of the interest rate swap agreemenesflisoted in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss) (“AOCI”) and is subsstdly reclassified into earnings in the period ti&t hedged transaction affects
earnings, due to the fact that the interest ragpsagreements qualify as effective cash flow hedfies Company does not use derivative
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

In March 2007, Level 3 Financing Inc., the Companyholly owned subsidiary, entered into two interage swap agreements to hedge
the interest payments on $1 billion notional amafrftoating rate debt. The two interest rate s\wgpeements are with different
counterparties and are for $500 million each. Thredactions were effective beginning in April 2@0%l mature in January 2014. The
Company uses interest rate swaps to convert speeifiable rate debt issuances into fixed rate.démder the terms of the interest rate swap
transactions, the Company receives interest payased on rolling three month LIBOR terms and jatgsest at the fixed rate of 4.93%
under one arrangement and 4.92% under the othex.Company evaluates the effectiveness of the Isaalya quarterly basis. The Company
measures effectiveness by offsetting the chantjeeirariable portion of the interest rate swap wie changes in interest expense paid due
to fluctuations in the LIBOR -based interest r&aring the periods presented, these derivatives weed to hedge the variable cash flows
associated with existing obligations. The Compagpognizes any ineffective portion of the changiinvalue of the hedged item in the
consolidated statements of operations. All comptmehthe interest rate swaps were included imgs2ssment of hedge effectiveness. H
ineffectiveness for the Company’s cash flow hedgas not material in any period presented. See NdteSubsequent Events for additional
information on the interest rate swaps.

The Company is exposed to credit related loss#®irvent of non-performance by counterparties. The
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counterparties to any of the financial derivatittess Company enters into are major institutions witlestment grade credit ratings. The
Company evaluates counterparty credit risk befatereng into any hedge transaction and continuetogely monitor the financial market
and the risk that its counterparties will defaulttbeir obligations. This credit risk is generdilyited to the unrealized gains in such contre
should any of these counterparties fail to perfasmontracted.

Amounts in AOCI related to derivatives are indilgcecognized in earnings as periodic settlemeatsiothroughout the term of the
swaps, when the related interest payments are prattee Company’s variable-rate debt. As of June28@2 and December 31, 2011, the
Company had the following outstanding derivatives were designated as cash flow hedges of intextstisk:

Number of Notional
Interest Rate Derivative Instruments (dollars in millions)
Interest rate swaps Two $ 1,00(C

The table below presents the fair value of the Camyjs derivative financial instruments as well lasit classification on the
consolidated balance sheets as follows (dollarsiilions):

Liability Derivatives

June 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Derivatives designated as Balance Sheet Fair Balance Sheet Fair
hedging instruments Location Value Location Value
Cash flow hedging contracts Other noncurrent liabilities  $ 74 Other noncurrent liabilities  $ 90

The amount of gains (losses) recognized in Othenf@ehensive Loss consists of the following (doliarmillions):

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments 2012 2011

Cash flow hedging contracts
Three Months Ended June 30, $ 9 4 2
Six Months Ended June 30, $ 16 $ 8

The amount of gains (losses) reclassified from A@Qdhcome/Loss (effective portions) consists @& tbllowing (dollars in millions):

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments Income Statement Location 2012 2011

Cash flow hedging contracts:
Three Months Ended June 30, Interest Expense $ (11) $ (12)
Six Months Ended June 30, Interest Expense $ 22) $ (23

Changes in the fair value of interest rate swagggdated as hedging instruments of the variabilftgash flows associated with floating-
rate, long-term debt obligations are reported inCAO'hese amounts subsequently are reclassifiedntgrest expense as a yield adjustment
of the hedged debt obligation in the same periaghith the related interest on the floating-ratbtdsbligations affects earnings. Amounts
currently included in AOCI will be reclassified ¢arnings prior to the settlement of these cash Redging contracts in 2014. The Company
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estimates that $44 million of net losses on therest rate swaps (based on the estimated LIBOR@aswf June 30, 2012 ) will be
reclassified into earnings within the next twelvenths. The Company’s interest rate swap agreendesignated as cash flow hedging
contracts qualify as effective hedge relationshépsl as a result, hedge ineffectiveness was nariakin any of the periods presented.

(8) Long-Term Debt

As of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, long-tibt was as follows:

(dollars in millions) June 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Senior Secured Term Loan* $ 2,60C $ 2,60(
Senior Notes due 2014 (9.25%) — 807
Floating Rate Senior Notes due 2015 (4.506% asruf
30, 2012 and 4.202% as of December 31, 2011) 30C 30C
Senior Notes due 2017 (8.75%) 70C 70C
Senior Notes due 2018 (10.0%) 64C 64C
Senior Notes due 2019 (11.875%) 60= 60=
Senior Notes due 2019 (9.375%) 50C 50C
Senior Notes due 2019 (8.125%) 1,20(C 1,20(
Senior Notes due 2020 (8.625%) 90C —
Convertible Senior Notes due 2013 (15.0%) 17z 272
Convertible Senior Notes due 2015 (7.0%) 20C 20C
Convertible Senior Notes due 2015 Series B (7.0%) 27t 27¢
Convertible Senior Notes due 2016 (6.5%) 201 201
Commercial Mortgage due 2015 (9.86%) 64 65
Capital Leases 10z 131
Other 27 32
Total Debt Obligations 8,48¢ 8,52¢
Unamortized (Discount) Premium:
Discount on Senior Secured Term Loan (32) (33
Premium on Senior Notes due 2014 (9.25%) — 3
Discount on Senior Notes due 2018 (10.0%) (10 (12)
Discount on Senior Notes due 2019 (11.875%) (10 (20
Discount on Senior Notes due 2019 (9.375%) 9 9
Discount on Senior Notes due 2019 (8.125%) 9 9)
Discount on Convertible Senior Notes due 2015 (7.C 2 2
Discount due to embedded derivative contracts 3 )
Total Unamortized (Discount) Premium (74) (78)
Carrying Value of Debt 8,417 8,45(
Less current portion (222) (65)
Long-term Debt, less current portion $ 819C $ 8,38t

* The $1.4 billion Tranche A Term Loan due 2014 lamdeffective interest rate of 2.65% as of June28@2 and December 31, 2011,
excluding the effect of the $1 billion notional anmb interest rate swaps. The $650
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million Tranche B Il Term Loan due 2018 and the &%&illion Tranche B Il Term Loan due 2018 had aterest rate of 5.75% as of
June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

2012 Debt I ssuance, Related Redemption, and Registrations
8.125% Senior Notes due 2019

The 8.125% Senior Notes due 2019 issued by Let#@h&ncing, Inc. were not originally registered untte Securities Act of 1933, as
amended. During the second quarter of 2012, dhebriginally placed notes were exchanged fona issue of 8.125% Senior Notes due
2019 with identical terms and conditions, othentti@ose related to registration rights, in a regedt exchange offer and now are freely
tradeable. The 8.125% Senior Notes became fullyuaednditionally guaranteed by Level 3 Communiaadid_LC during the first quarter of
2012.

8.625% Senior Notes due 2020

On January 13, 2012, Level 3 Financing completedffering of $900 million aggregate principal tf 8.625% Senior Notes due 2020
(the " 8.625% Senior Notes"). Debt issuance cdsépproximately $20 million were capitalized ane &eing amortized over the term of the
8.625% Senior Notes. In February 2012, a portiothefnet proceeds from the offering of the 8.625%i& Notes were used to redeem all of
Level 3 Financing's outstanding 9.25% Senior Ndtes 2014 in aggregate principal amount of $807ionill The Company recognized a loss
on extinguishment of debt of $22 million in thesfiquarter of 2012 as a result of the redemptich®®.25% Senior Notes due 2014.

The remaining net proceeds constitute purchase yriodebtedness under the existing senior secuestitagreement and indentures of
the Company and Level 3 Financing and are beind sskely to fund the cost of construction, instadia, acquisition, lease, development or
improvement of any Telecommunications/IS assetsléfiaed in the existing senior secured credit agrent and indentures of Level 3),
including cash purchase price of any past, pendirfgture acquisitions.

The 8.625% Senior Notes will mature on July 15,®08terest on the notes will accrue from Janu&y2012 and will be payable on
January 15 and July 15 of each year, beginningiynlb, 2012. The notes are fully and unconditiyngliaranteed on an unsubordinated and
unsecured basis by the Company and became fullpacahditionally guaranteed by Level 3 Communiaaid_LC in the second quarter of
2012. The notes are unsecured, unsubordinatedatibing of Level 3 Financing, ranking equal in rigfipayment with all existing and future
unsubordinated indebtedness of Level 3 Financind,aae senior in right of payment to all existinglduture indebtedness of Level 3
Financing expressly subordinated in right of paytterthe notes.

The 8.625% Senior Notes are subject to redemptitimezoption of Level 3 Financing in whole or inrpat any time before January 15,
2016 at the redemption price equal to 100% of theiircipal amount, plus a make-whole premium aratged and unpaid interest. On and
after January 15, 2016, Level 3 Financing may redak or part of the 8.625% Senior Notes, uponless than 30 nor more than 60 days'
prior notice, at the redemption prices set fortlolwgexpressed as a percentage of principal amppiu accrued and unpaid interest thereon
(if any) to, but not including, the redemption détabject to the right of holders of record on rtbkevant record date to receive interest due on
the relevant interest payment date), if redeemethgthe twelve months beginning January 15, ofyisars indicated below:

Reder_nption
Year Price
2016 104.31%
2017 102.15(%
2018 100.000%
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In addition, at any time or from time to time ongpior to January 15, 2015, Level 3 Financing megeem up to 35% of the original
aggregate principal amount of the 8.625% Senioesl¢including any additional 8.625% Senior Notés) eedemption price equal to
108.625% of the principal amount of the 8.625%nior Notes so redeemed, plus accrued and ungeigst thereon (if any) to the redemp
date (subject to the right of holders of recordlmrelevant record date to receive interest dut@melevant interest payment date), with the
net cash proceeds contributed to the capital oEL8\Financing of one or more private placemenigetsons other than affiliates of Level 3
or underwritten public offerings of common stock.@vel 3 resulting, in each case, in gross proceéds least $100 million in aggregate;
provided, however, that at least 65% of the origaggregate principal amount of the 8.625% Senimtehl (including any additional 8.625%
Senior Notes) would remain outstanding immediasdigr giving effect to such redemption. Any suctiemaption shall be made within 90
days of such private placement or public offeripgm not less than 30 nor more than 60 days' pdtice

The 8.625% Senior Notes due 2020 issued by Let@h&ncing, Inc. were not originally registered untte Securities Act of 1933, as
amended. During the second quarter of 2012, dhebriginally placed notes were exchanged fona issue of 8.625% Senior Notes due
2020 with identical terms and conditions, othentti@ose related to registration rights, in a regedt exchange offer and are now freely
tradeable. The 8.625% Senior Notes became fullyumednditionally guaranteed by Level 3 Communiaadid_LC during the second quarter
of 2012.

2012 Debt Exchange

On March 13, 2012, the Company entered into anan@h agreement for a portion of its 15% Convertg#aior Notes due 2013.
Pursuant to the agreement, the holder of approei;n&t00 million aggregate principal amount of Li¥'s outstanding 15% Convertible
Senior Notes due 2013 agreed to exchange thafatedypproximately 3.7 million shares of Level 38mmon stock into which the notes were
convertible plus an additional 1.7 million sharesd total of approximately 5.4 million shares. Tomsideration was based on the market
price for these notes which included an inducerpezriium and included a payment for accrued andidripterest from January 15, 2012
through March 15, 2012 of approximately $2 milliohhis transaction did not include the paymenthi®y€ompany of any cash. The
Company recognized a loss on inducement includéosmon extinguishment of debt of $39 million le ffirst quarter of 2012 as a result of
the exchange of the 15% Convertible Senior Notesafi 3.

Long-Term Debt Maturities

Aggregate future contractual maturities of longrtetebt and capital leases (excluding issue dissppnémiums and fair value
adjustments) were as follows as of June 30, 20a@afd in millions):

2012 (remaining six months)  $ 32
2013 211
2014 1,42¢
2015 83¢
2016 207
2017 70€
Thereafter 5,067

$ 8,48¢

(9) Stock-Based Compensation

The following table summarizes non-cash compensatigpense and capitalized non-cash compensatighris and six months ended
June 30, 2012 and 2011 (dollars in millions):
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Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2012 2011 2012 2011
0SsO $ 4 $ 2 % 6 9 4
Restricted Stock Units and Shares 14 3 18 7
401(k) Match Expense 6 4 13 7
Restricted Stock Unit Bonus Grant 5 8 16 24
29 17 53 42
Capitalized Noncash Compensation — — — —
$ 29 % 17 3 53 $ 42

The Company capitalizes non-cash compensatiomémet employees directly involved in the constructbthe network, installation of
services for customers or development of businggpat systems. As of June 30, 2012 , there wepeoapmately 2 million outperform stock
options (“OS0s") outstanding. As of June 30, 201t#re were approximately 4 million nonvested retd stock and restricted stock units
(“RSUs") outstanding. In addition, as of June 3012, there were approximately five hundred thodsam-qualified stock options
outstanding.

During 2012, the Company adopted incentive andtiete plans to encourage certain levels of managéteemain employed with tl
Company and to award the achievement of establisegdrmance criteria. The non-cash compensatiperese for the awards is included in
the RSU information above.

(10) Segment Information

Accounting guidance for the disclosures about segenaf an enterprise defines operating segmentermponents of an enterprise for
which separate financial information is availalhel avhich is evaluated regularly by the Company’igfcbperating decision maker, or
decision making group, in deciding how to allocasources and assess performance. As a result oftégration of Global Crossing (see
Note 2- Events Associated with the Amalgamation of Gldbedssing) and the sale of the coal business ddnadourth quarter of 2011, the
Company reorganized its management reporting streitd reflect the way in which it allocates resmsrand assesses performance. As a
result of these changes, the Company is now coetpo$one reportable segment for financial repgrfiarposes, representing its
communications services business. The prior ygartable segment information has been revisedwéocm with this presentation.

The data presented in the following table incluidésrmation for the three and six months ended Rhe2012 and June 30, 2011 .
Information related to the acquired business itunted from the date of acquisition, and informatielated to dispositions is included throt
the date of sale.

Total revenue consists of:

1) Core Network Services revenue from colocatioa data center services, transport and fiber, tPdata services, and voice
services.

2) Wholesale Voice Services and Other revenue frarg tistance voice services, revenue from managettmand its related

intercarrier compensation services and revenue fheniSBC Master Services Agreement”, which wasioletd through an
acquisition in 2005.
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The following table provides revenue (dollars ifliomns):

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Core Network Services $ 1,38¢ $ 744 $ 2,76¢ $ 1,47:
Wholesale Voice Services and Other 20C 16¢ 404 354
$ 1,58¢ $ 913 $ 3,172 $ 1,82

The prior year's revenue by service offering hanbevised to conform to the current year's presiemt

(11) Commitments, Contingencies and Other Items

The Company is subject to various legal proceedamgsother contingent liabilities that individuadly in the aggregate could materially
affect its financial condition, future results gferations or cash flows. Amounts accrued for sucttingencies aggregate $274 milliand art
included in “Other” current liabilities and “Otherabilities” in the Company's consolidated balasbeet as of June 30, 2012 . The
establishment of an accrual does not mean thaaldcinds have been set aside to satisfy a givetingenmcy. Thus, the resolution of a
particular contingency for the amount accrued mmyemo effect on the Company's results of operatot could materially adversely affect
its cash flows for the affected period.

In accordance with the accounting guidance foriogencies, the Company accrues its estimate ohtingent liability when it is both
probable that a liability has been incurred andatm®unt of the loss can be reasonably estimate@r&\his probable that a liability has been
incurred and there is a range of expected losw/fficch no amount in the range is more likely thap ather amount, the Company accrues at
the low end of the range. The Company reviewsctsuals at least quarterly and adjusts them tecethe impact of negotiations, settleme
rulings, advice of legal counsel, and other infatioraand events pertaining to a particular matteaddition, adjustments to the accruals
established for Global Crossing's contingent liib8 may be made in connection with the purchaise @llocation of acquired assets and
assumed liabilities under acquisition accountinbiclv is expected to be completed no later than ligetd, 2012. Any such accrual
adjustments would generally not affect resultsp#rations but rather would result in an increasgemrease to goodwill associated with the
Global Crossing acquisition.

Below is a description of material legal proceediagd other contingencies pending at June 30, Zlit®hugh the Company believes it
has accrued for these matters in accordance wathebounting guidance for contingencies, contingsrare inherently unpredictable and
possible that results of operations or cash flomgdbe materially and adversely affected in anyipalar period by unfavorable
developments in, or resolution or disposition afe @r more of these matters. For those contingemgigespect of which the Company
believes that it is reasonably possible that ahoag result that is materially in excess of theraak(if any) established for the matter, the
Company has below either provided an estimate di possible loss or range of loss or included &istant that such an estimate cannot be
made. In addition to the contingencies describéoMpehe Company is party to many other legal peaibiegs and contingencies the resolu
of which is not expected to materially affect itsaihcial condition or future results of operatidreyond the amounts accrued.

Rights-of-Way Litigation

The Company is party to a number of purported dasion lawsuits involving its right to install f optic cable network in railroad
right-of-ways adjacent to plaintiffs' land. In geale the Company obtained the rights to constrisabétworks from railroads, utilities, and
others, and has installed its networks along thletsiof-way so granted. Plaintiffs in the purportéass actions assert that they are the owners
of lands over which the its fiber optic cable netkgpass, and that the railroads, utilities, amist who granted the Company the right to
construct and
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maintain its network did not have the legal auttyaio do so. The complaints seek damages on treofiespass, unjust enrichment and
slander of title and property, as well as punithanages. The Company has also received, and ntlag foture receive, claims and demands
related to rights-of-way issues similar to the &ssin these cases that may be based on similaffenedt legal theories. The Company has
defeated motions for class certification in a nunddghese actions but expects that, absent sedtienf these actions, plaintiffs in the penc
lawsuits will continue to seek certification of taide or multi-state classes. The only lawsuivitich a class was certified against the
Company, absent an agreed upon settlement, ocdariédyle, et. al. v. Level 3 Communications, Inc., et. al., a purported two state class
action filed in the United States District Court the District of Idaho. Th&oyle lawsuit has been dismissed pursuant to a settleraaahed

in November 2010 as described further below.

The Company negotiated a series of class settlenadfeicting all persons who own or owned land nexir near railroad rights of way
in which it has installed its fiber optic cablewetks. The United States District Court for the et of Massachusetts ikingsborough v.
Sprint Communications Co. L.P. granted preliminary approval of the proposed sattlet; however, on September 10, 2009, the couieden
motion for final approval of the settlement on Hesis that the court lacked subject matter jurtggticand dismissed the case.

In November 2010, the Company negotiated revisatesent terms for a series of state class settisrafecting all persons who own
or owned land next to or near railroad rights of\wawhich the Company has installed its fiber ogtiible networks. The Company is
currently pursuing presentment of the settlemeiipiplicable jurisdictions. The settlements affegtinrrent and former landowners in the
states of Idaho, lllinois, and Alabama have reagieal court approval and the parties are engagdide claims process for those states. The
settlement has been presented to federal cousesvigral additional states for approval.

Management believes that the Company has subdtdetenses to the claims asserted in all of theierss and intends to defend them
vigorously if a satisfactory settlement is notmbitely approved for all affected landowners.

Derivative Action

In March 2009, Level 3 Communications, Inc., a®mimal defendant, certain of its directors anctitgent officers, and a former
officer, were named as defendants in purportedkbltmder derivative actions in the District CourtoBmfield County, Colorado, which have
been consolidated as lre Level 3 Communications, Inc. Derivative Litigation (Lead Case No. 2009CV59) (the “State Derivative Action”).
The plaintiffs in the action allege that during freriod specified in the complaints the named didiats failed to disclose material adverse
facts about the Company's integration activitiesimess and operations. The complaint seeks damadashalf of the Company based on
purported breaches of fiduciary duties for dissextiing false and misleading statements and faibngaintain internal controls; unjust
enrichment; abuse of control; gross mismanagemeste of corporate assets; and, with respect tainatefendants, breach of fiduciary
duties in connection with the resignation of Ke@tHara. The plaintiffs undertook further assessnoéttte State Derivative Action followir
the final dismissal of a related securities clag®a lawsuit which was based upon similar allegati and determined not to pursue the action
further. The plaintiffs filed a motion for voluntadismissal and the action was dismissed by thet couJune 26, 2012.

Peruvian Tax Litigation

Beginning in 2005, one of the Company's Peruvidisigliaries received a number of assessments fopéaralty and interest for
calendar years 2001 and 2002. Peruvian tax aut®(BUNAT) took the position that the Peruvianssdiary incorrectly documented its
importations resulting in additional income taxhhiblding and value-added taxes (VAT). The total amof the asserted claims, including
potential interest and penalties, was $26 millieonsisting of $3 million for income tax withholdjrin connection with the import of services
for calendar years 2001 and 2002, $7 million innegrtion with VAT in connection with the import cdrwices for calendar years 2001 and
2002, and $16 million in connection with the diealance of VAT credits for periods beginning in 20D&ie to accrued interest and foreign
exchange effects, and taking into account the dewveénts described below, the total amount of exjgolsas increased to $90 million .
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The Company challenged the tax assessments dWdgl® filing administrative claims before SUNATuling August 2006 and June
2007, SUNAT rejected the Company's administratlaerts, thereby confirming the assessments. Appeats filed in September 2006 and
July 2007 in the Tax Court, which is the highesnastrative authority. In October 2011, the Taxu@dssued a ruling regarding VAT,
associated penalties and penalties associatedwititholding taxes, adjudicating the central issnderlying the assessments in the
government's favor, while confirming the assessnrepart and denying a portion of the assessmeptracedural grounds. Other than an
immaterial amount, all assessed items dismissdtéyax Court in this ruling remain open for reasseent by SUNAT. While this Tax
Court ruling applies only to 2002, the Company dedis the Tax Court will issue a similar ruling wigspect to 2001, and all material
amounts likely to be waived due to procedural dsfegnilarly remain open for reassessment.

In November 2011, the Tax Court issued a rulindghwéispect to assessed 2001 withholding tax, holdiiagthe statute of limitations
had run prior to assessment by SUNAT. The Compatig\es that this adjudication of the withholdimag issue is likely to be final, and the
Company expects to win a similar verdict with redpge assessed 2002 withholding tax. However, piesalvith respect to withholding tax
are not time-barred, and were confirmed in the Caxrt's October 2011 ruling.

The Company has appealed the Tax Court's Octolddr @€cision to the judicial court in Peru. The Camphas not received Tax Cc
rulings for all periods, but it has received adgations of each substantive issue for at leaspenied. As a result, the Company expects
decisions for the remaining open periods to beister® with decisions already rendered. The Compateynds to appeal any Tax Court
verdict with respect to 2001 to the extent conaistgth the October 2011 decision in the governrsdiavor and will protest any reassessr
of amounts dismissed by the Tax Court on procedymainds.

Employee Severance and Contractor Termination Disputes

A number of former employees and third-party carttyes have asserted a variety of claims in litigatigainst certain Latin American
subsidiaries of the Company for separation payersgce, commissions, pension benefits, unpaid ieecpay, breach of employment
contracts, unpaid performance bonuses, propertyadas) moral damages and related statutory pendities, costs and expenses (including
accrued interest, attorneys fees and statutorilydated inflation adjustments) as a result of teeparation from the Company or termination
of service relationships. The Company is vigorowdfending itself against the asserted claims, whiggregate to approximately $41
million .

Brazilian Tax Claims

In December 2004, March 2009 and April 2009, the Bdulo state tax authorities issued tax assessragainst one of the Company's
Brazilian subsidiaries for the Tax on DistributiohGoods and Services (“ICMS”) with respect to mwes from leasing movable properties
(in the case of the December 2004 and March 2088saments) and revenues from the provision ofniatexccess services (in the case of the
April 2009 assessment), by treating such activaieshe provision of communications services, tctvkhe ICMS tax applies. In September
2002, July 2009 and May 2012, the Rio de Janeate $6x authorities issued tax assessments t@the Brazilian subsidiary on similar
issues. The Company has filed objections to thesessments, arguing that the lease of assets@pdavision of internet access are not
communication services subject to ICMS. The objextito the December 2004 and September 2002 ass#sdmave been rejected by the
respective state administrative courts, and the 2oy has appealed those decisions to the judiciats. The objections to the March, April
and July 2009 and May 2012 assessments are stidimg final administrative decisions.

The Company is vigorously contesting all such assests in both states, and in particular, viewsasessment of ICMS on revenues
from leasing movable properties to be without méN#vertheless, the Company believes that it is;meably possible that these assessments
could result in a loss of up to $55 million in egsef the accruals established for these matters.
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Customer Bankruptcy Claim

During 2007, one of the Company's U.S. subsidiani@smenced default and disconnect procedures dgaaqustomer for breach of a
sales contract for termination of international aednestic wireless and wireline phone service basetthe nature of the customer's traffic,
which rendered the contract highly unprofitabléiie Company. After the process was begun, the mestéiled for bankruptcy protection,
thereby barring the Company from taking furthecdimection actions against it. The Company comndeaoeadversary proceeding in the
bankruptcy court, asserting a claim for damageshi@icustomer's alleged breaches of the contractaara declaration that, as a result of
these breaches, the customer was prohibited freomaiag the contract in its reorganization procegslin

The customer filed several counterclaims agairssQbmpany alleging various breaches of contracatt@mpting improperly to
terminate service, for improperly blocking intetinatl traffic, for violations of the CommunicatioAst of 1934 and for related tort-based
claims. The Company notified the customer thatGbenpany would be raising its rates for certainhef $ervices and filed a motion with the
bankruptcy court seeking additional adequate assartor the rate change, or an order allowing then@any to terminate the customer's
service. The customer amended its counter claimasgert claims for breach of contract based upemate increase. On July 3, 2008, the
Court issued an opinion holding that the agreerd&hhot permit the Company to increase the ratésémmanner it did and that the Comp:
(a) breached the sales contract in so doing; andgb therefore not entitled to additional adeqaatirance or an order terminating service.
The Court did, however, permit the Company to aniendomplaint to plead a rescission claim (whicmsviiled on July 14, 2008) and to
assert other defenses.

The Court dismissed the customer's bankruptcy lsaseder dated November 25, 2009, and retaineddiersary proceeding (includi
the customer's counterclaim). On December 26, 20@9Company terminated service to the customez.ddmpany amended its complaint
to include allegations relating to the manipulatidrraffic data, so called “ANI stripping,” anddftustomer filed an amended answer,
affirmative defenses and counterclaims.

On January 14, 2011, the Company filed a motiorsémnmary judgment asserting that the customer wasmtitled to recover any
damages (other than those based on rescissiornfigpaes) by reason of a limitation of liabilityquision in the contract and applicable law.
On July 22, 2011, the Court issued its decisiothermotion. Although the Court held that the lirtida of liability provision of the contract
was valid and enforceable and barred the custoraer pursuing all forms of lost profit damages, @wrurt refused to exclude the customer's
claim for general damages at that point, and pé&sthihat issue to proceed.

After discovery in the action concluded, the Caurdered trial to proceed in three separate phdsies.of the first set of issues
commenced on November 14, 2011. After the Countchesstimony from four witnesses, the matter wgewded until January 23, 2012, at
which time further testimony was taken for thregsdd he customer's most recent damage estimateddrmm approximately $150 millicio
approximately $450 million . While the final outcerof this matter was uncertain, the Company betigstbal Crossing had good defenses
that would have limited substantially the amountiamages recoverable by the customer, includingnde based upon the limitation of
liability provisions in the contract. However, theecise effect of the application of these defemszsunclear, and the Company therefore
elected to settle the case for an amount approzignatjual to the accrual that the Company had ksitell for the matter. The settlement
agreement was entered into by the parties effeotivapril 11, 2012, and the parties filed a stipiola with the Court on April 13, 2012,
pursuant to which the case was dismissed with greguand payment was rendered during the secormtequad 2012.

Lettersof Credit

It is customary for Level 3 to use various finah@igtruments in the normal course of businesssehestruments include letters of
credit. Letters of credit are conditional commitrizeissued on behalf of Level 3 in accordance witcified terms and conditions. As of
June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, Level 3 hestlamdling letters of credit of approximately $30liom and $33 million , respectively, of
which $28 million and
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$29 million , are collateralized by cash, thatgfiacted on the consolidated balance sheets agxtedtcash. The Company does not believe it
is reasonable to estimate the fair value of therdgebf credit and does not believe exposure ®ibseasonably possible nor material.

(12) Condensed Consolidating Financial Information

Level 3 Financing, a wholly owned subsidiary of @@mpany, has issued Senior Notes that are ungkobligations of Level 3
Financing; however, they are also jointly and salgiand fully and unconditionally guaranteed onuaisecured senior basis by Level 3
Communications, Inc. and Level 3 CommunicationsCLL

In conjunction with the registration of the Seniwotes, the accompanying condensed consolidatirgial information has been
prepared and presented pursuant to SEC RegulatioR@e 3-10 “Financial statements of guarantord affiliates whose securities
collateralize an issue registered or being regsitér

The operating activities of the separate legatiestincluded in the Compars/tonsolidated financial statements are interdegr@nd he
accompanying condensed consolidating financiarimédion presents the results of operations, firsrmsition and cash flows of each legal
entity and, on an aggregate basis, the other narmagtor subsidiaries based on amounts incurreditly entities, and is not intended to
present the operating results of those legal estiin a standione basis. Level 3 Communications, LLC leasespegent and certain facilitie
from other wholly owned subsidiaries of Level 3 Gomnications, Inc. These transactions are eliminatékde consolidated results of the
Company.
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Comprehensiitecome (Loss)
For the three months ended June 30, 2012

Revenue $
Costs and Expense:

Cost of Revenue

Depreciation and
Amortization

Selling, General and
Administrative

Restructuring Charges

Total Costs and
Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)
Other Income (Expense):
Interest income

Interest expense

Interest income (expense)
affiliates, net

Equity in net earnings
(losses) of subsidiaries

Other income (expense),
net

Total Other Expense

Income (Loss) before
Income Taxes

Income Tax Expense

Net Income (Loss)

Other Comprehensive
Loss, Net of Income
Taxes

Comprehensive Income
(Loss) $

Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Other Non-
Communications, Financing, Communications, Guarantor
Inc Inc LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)
— — 65¢ $ 991 $ (64) 1,58€
— — 244 465 (612) 64¢
— — 6€ 12t — 191
— — 39: 22C 3) 61C
— — 3 1 — 4
— — 70€ 811 (64) 1,452
— — (47) 18C —_ 133
— — — 1 — 1
(39) (134 (1) ® = (181)
24E 402 (55¢€) (90) — —
(269) (539) 25 — 782 —
— — 2 9) — ()
(62) (269) (532) (10€) 782 187)
(62) (269) (579 74 782 (54)
— — @) @) = (8)
(62) (269) (580) 67 782 (62)
(56) (56) — (65) 121 (56)
(118) (325) (580) $ 2 903 (118)
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Comprehensiitecome (Loss)
For the six months ended June 30, 2012

Revenue $
Costs and Expense:

Cost of Revenue

Depreciation and
Amortization

Selling, General and
Administrative

Restructuring Charges

Total Costs and
Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)
Other Income (Expense):
Interest income

Interest expense

Interest income (expense)
affiliates, net

Equity in net earnings
(losses) of subsidiaries

Other income (expense),
net

Total Other Expense

Income (Loss) before
Income Taxes

Income Tax Expense

Net Income (Loss)

Other Comprehensive
Loss, Net of Income
Taxes

Comprehensive Income
(Loss)

Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Other Non-
Communications, Financing, Communications, Guarantor
Inc Inc LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)
— — 1,28t $ 2,01« $ 127 $ 3,172
— — 48C 94€ (121) 1,30¢
— — 138 24k — 37¢
1 — 791 44€ 6) 1,232
— — 6 2 — 8
1 — 1,41 1,63¢ (127) 2,92t
() — (125) 37t — 24¢
— — 1 1 — 2
(80) (273 (1) (16) = (370
49C 802 (1,119 a7g) — —
(570 (1,077 61 — 1,58¢ —
(39 (22 3 (1) — (59
(199 (570 (1,059 (191) 1,58¢ (427)
(200) (570 (1,179 184 1,58¢ a7¢)
= = (2 (20 = (22
(200) (570 (1,180 164 1,58¢ (200
(24) (24) — (30) 44 (24)
(219) (584) 1,180 $ 134 1,630 $ (219)
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Comprehensiitecome (Loss)
For the three months ended June 30, 2011

Revenue $
Costs and Expense:

Cost of Revenue

Depreciation and
Amortization

Selling, General and
Administrative

Restructuring Charges

Total Costs and Expens:

Operating Income (Loss)
Other Income (Expense):
Interest income

Interest expense

Interest income (expense)
affiliates, net

Equity in net earnings
(losses) of subsidiaries

Other income (expense),
net

Total Other Expense

Income (Loss) before Income
Taxes

Income Tax Expense

Loss from Continuing
Operations

Loss From Discontinued
Operations, Net

Net Loss

Other Comprehensive
Income, Net of Income
Taxes

Level 3 Other Non-
Level 3 Level 3 Communications, Guarantor
Communications, Inc  Financing, Inc LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)

— — % 57¢ $ 397 $ (60) 912
— — 224 18C (57) 347
— — 104 102 — 20€

1 — 30€ 53 ®3) 357

1 — 634 33t (60) 91C
(@) — (59) 62 — 3
(55) (99) @ ®) = (160)
211 35€ (518) (54) — —
(33€) (572) 36 — 872 —
— 23 3 — — (20)
(180 (336) (477) (59 872 (180
(181) (336) (53E) 3 872 a7
_ — — (€)] = (©)
(181) (336) (538) — 872 (180
= = = (1) = (2)
(181) (336) (538) () 872 (181
6 6 — (14) 6
(17%) 33) % (535 % 85¢ a75)

Comprehensive Income (Los@)
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Comprehensiitecome (Loss)
For the six months ended June 30, 2011

Level 3 Other Non-
Level 3 Level 3 Communications, Guarantor
Communications, Inc  Financing, Inc LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)

Revenue $ — $ — 1,13¢ $ 802 $ (112 1,827
Costs and Expense:

Cost of Revenue — — 43¢ 374 (10€) 704

Depreciation and

Amortization — — 207 202 — 40¢

Selling, General and

Administrative 1 — 61: 10€ (6) 714

Restructuring Charges e e — — — e

Total Costs and Expens: 1 — 1,25¢ 682 (112) 1,827

Operating Income (Loss) (1) — (220 121 — —
Other Income (Expense):

Interest income — — — — — —

Interest expense (112 (197 ) (6) — (317)

Interest income (expense)

affiliates, net 421 71¢ (1,037 (109) — —

Equity in net earnings

(losses) of subsidiaries (6793 (1,17%) 78 — 1,761 —

Other income (expense),

net (21) (23) 6 1 — 37

Total Other Expense (385) (67%) (949) (1149 1,767 (359)

Income (Loss) before Income
Taxes (38€) (67%) (1,069) 7 1,767 (354)
Income Tax Expense — — — (30) = (30)
Loss from Continuing
Operations (386) (679) (1,069) (23) 1,767 (389
Loss From Discontinued
Operations, Net — — = (2) = (2
Net Loss (386) (679) (1,069 (25) 1,767 (386)

Other Comprehensive

Income, Net of Income

Taxes 57 57 — 49 (10€) 57
Comprehensive Income (Los$) 329 3 (616) (1,069 $ 24 8 1,661 (329
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets

June 30, 2012

Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Other Non-
Communications, Financing, Communications, Guarantor
Inc Inc LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 2 3% 6 $ 41€ 30¢ — 73:
Restricted cash and
securities — — 1 7 — 8
Receivables, less
allowances for doubtfu
accounts — — 80 60¢ — 68¢
Due from (to) affiliates 13,96 15,19: (29,037) (126) — —
Other 3 16 68 80 — 167
Total Current Assets 13,97: 15,21« (28,46%) 87¢ — 1,597
Property, Plant, and
Equipment, net — — 2,86( 5,21¢ — 8,07¢
Restricted Cash and
Securities 15 — 19 15 — 49
Goodwill and Other
Intangibles, net — — 45C 2,35¢ — 2,80¢
Investment in Subsidiaries (11,28 (19,559 3,32¢ — 27,51¢ —
Other Assets, net 11 115 10 284 — 42C
Total Assets $ 2,711 $ 4,225 $ (21,809 8,74¢ 27518 $ 12,94°
Liabilities and
Stockholders' Equity
(Deficit)
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1 3 — % 8 68¢ — 3 69¢
Current portion of long
term debt 16¢ — 2 51 — 222
Accrued payroll and
employee benefits — — 97 43 — 14C
Accrued interest 43 181 — 1 — 22t
Current portion of
deferred revenue — — 10E 14E — 25C
Other 1 1 31 86 — 11¢
Total Current Liabilities 214 182 24z 1,01t — 1,65¢
Long-Term Debt, less
current portion 1,26¢ 6,781 21 fINiC — 8,19(
Deferred Revenue, less
current portion — — 607 261 — 86¢
Other Liabilities 14 10z 14E 76C — 1,021
Commitments and
Contingencies
Stockholders' Equity
(Deficit) 1,214 (11,290 (22,81¢) 6,594 27,51t 1,214
Total Liabilities and
Stockholders' Equity ; }
(Deficit) 2,711 $ (4,227 $ (21,809 8,74¢ 2751t % 12,94]
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets
December 31, 2011

Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Other Non-
Communications, Financing, Communications, Guarantor
Inc Inc LLC Subsidiaries Eliminations Total
(dollars in millions)
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 2 8 6 61€ $ 29z — 91¢
Restricted cash and
securities — — 1 9 — 1C
Receivables, less
allowances for doubtful
accounts — — 59 58¢ — 64¢
Due from (to) affiliates 13,47. 14,58¢ (28,097) 36 — —
Other 3 1€ 48 64 — 131
Total Current Assets 13,47 14,60¢ (27,36¢) 99C — 1,707
Property, Plant, and
Equipment, net — — 2,828 DIk — 8,13¢
Restricted Cash and
Securities 18 — 19 14 — 51
Goodwill and Other
Intangibles, net — — 481 2,41¢ — 2,89¢
Investment in Subsidiaries (10,719 (18,467) 3,41: — 25,77: —
Other Assets, net 13 10¢ 6 267 — 39t
Total Assets $ 2,79C $ (3,759 20,62y % 9,00z 25,77¢ 13,18¢
Liabilities and
Stockholders' Equity
(Deficit)
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ — 3 — 37 $ 71C — 747
Current portion of long-
term debt — — 2 63 — 65
Accrued payroll and
employee benefits — — 11€ 93 — 20¢
Accrued interest 5C 16& — 1 — 21€
Current portion of
deferred revenue — — 107 157 — 264
Other — 1 52 104 — 157
Total Current Liabilities 5C 16¢€ 314 1,12¢ — 1,65¢
Long-Term Debt, less
current portion [B58¢ 6,68¢ 22 142 — 8,38t
Deferred Revenue, less
current portion — — 612 278 — 88t
Other Liabilities 14 11€ 14€ 791 — 1,06
Commitments and
Contingencies
Stockholders' Equity
(Deficit) 1,19: (10,727) (21,719 6,66¢ 25,77¢ 1,19¢
Total Liabilities and
Stockholders' Equity
(Deficit) $ 2,79C % (3,757) (20,62 % 9,002 25,77¢ 13,18t
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Level 3

Communications, Financing,

Inc

Level 3
Communications,
LLC

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
For the six months ended June 30, 2012

Other Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Total

Net Cash Provided by (Used in)
Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing
Activities:

Capital Expenditures

Decrease in restricted cash and

securities, net

Proceeds from sale of property,
plant, and equipment and other
assets

(dollars in millions)

Net Cash Provided by (Used in)
Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing
Activities:

Long-term debt borrowings, net of

issuance costs

Payments on and repurchases ¢
long-term debt, including curren
portion and refinancing costs

Proceeds from stock options
exercised

Increase (decrease) due from
affiliates, net

Net Cash Provided by (Used in)
Financing Activities

Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash
and Cash Equivalents

Net Change in Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at

Beginning of Period

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End$of

Period

(149 s (45 3 (66) $ 562 10¢
= = (129 (195) (319)
3 — — 1 4
= = = 5 5
3 — (123 (18¢) (309
_ 88( — — 88C
= (825) = (39) (869)
1 _ _ _ 1
14¢ 19¢ (13 (317) =
141 248 (13) (355) 18
= = = (2 (2
— — (202) 17 (185)
2 6 61¢ 292 91¢
2 3 6 $ 416 $ 30¢ 732
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows
For the six months ended June 30, 2011

Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Other Non-
Communications, Financing, Communications, Guarantor
Inc Inc LLC Subsidiaries

Eliminations Total

Net Cash Provided by (Used in)
Operating Activities of Continuing
Operations

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Capital Expenditures

Increase in restricted cash and
securities, net

Proceeds from sale of property,
plant, and equipment and other
assets

(dollars in millions)

8 $ (180 s 85 S 30¢

— — (94) (149

— — — (34)

— 3 132

= (237)

— €l

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
of Continuing Operations

Cash Flows from Financing Activitie

Long-term debt borrowings, net of
issuance costs

Payments on and repurchases of

long-term debt, including current
portion and refinancing costs

Increase (decrease) due from
affiliates, net

_ — (93) (179

29z 474 — —

(197) (46%) = @

(30) 16¢ 8 (147)

— (267)

— 76€

= (662)

Net Cash Provided by (Used in)
Financing Activities of Continuing
Operations

Net Cash Used in Discontinued
Operations

Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash ¢
Cash Equivalents

65 18¢ 8 (149

Net Change in Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at
Beginning of Period

17) — — (15)

17z 7 35C 86

— (32

= 61¢€

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of
Period $

15¢  $ 7 $ 35C 3 71
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(13) Subsequent Events

In August 2012, the Company completed the offeah 300 million aggregate principal amount of8t875%Senior Notes due 2019
8.875% Senior Notes") in a private offering to "ified institutional buyers," as defined in Ruledunder the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and non-U.S. persons outside the UnitgdsStnder Regulation S under the Securities At988, as amended. The new 8.875%
Senior Notes were priced to investors at 100% @if thrincipal amount and will mature on June 1,200he 8.875% Senior Notes will not be
guaranteed by any of the Company's subsidiaries.néhproceeds from the offering of the notes dllused for general corporate purposes,
including the potential repurchase, redemptionayegent or refinancing of the Company's and its islidrses' existing indebtedness from
time to time.

The 8.875% Senior Notes will not be registered utide Securities Act of 1933 or any state securitdvs and, unless so registered,
may not be offered or sold except pursuant to gticgble exemption from the registration requiretsesf the Securities Act of 1933 and
applicable state securities laws. In connectiof Wit offering, the Company entered into a redistmarights agreement pursuant to which
Level 3 agreed to file a registration statemergxchange the offered notes with new notes thaswastantially identical in all material
respects, and to use commercially reasonable sfiortause the registration statement to be dekédfective no later than 270 days after the
issuance of the offered notes.

Also in August 2012, Level 3 Financing, Inc. comptethe offering of $ 775 million aggregate prirdipmount of its 7% Senior Notes
due 2020 (" 7% Senior Notes") in a private offeriagqualified institutional buyers," as definedRule 144A under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and non-U.S. persons outsidénited States under Regulation S under the Seesidct of 1933, as amended. The new
7% Senior Notes were priced to investors at 100%heif principal amount and will mature on Jun2@20. The 7% Senior Notes are
guaranteed on an unsecured basis by Level 3 Conaatioris, Inc., and subject to receipt of applicablgulatory approvals will be
guaranteed on an unsecured basis by Level 3 Conaatioris, LLC. The net proceeds from the offeringhaf notes, along with cash on hand
were used to call for redemption all of the outdtag 8.75% Senior Notes due 2017 issued by LeWha&ncing, Inc., including the payment
of accrued interest and applicable premiums, arbimection with that redemption, the indenturatiad to the 8.75% Senior Notes due
2017 was discharged.

The 7%Senior Notes will not be registered under the StesarAct of 1933 or any state securities laws amdess so registered, may
be offered or sold except pursuant to an applicakéanption from the registration requirements ef &tecurities Act of 1933 and applicable
state securities laws. In connection with the a@fiigrthe Company and Level 3 Financing, Inc. emténéo a registration rights agreement
pursuant to which Level 3 and Level 3 Financing, bogreed to file a registration statement to emgbahe offered notes with new notes that
are substantially identical in all material resgeaind to use commercially reasonable efforts tis&she registration statement to be declared
effective no later than 270 days after the issuaftike offered notes.

Also in August, 2012, Level 3 Financing, Inc. refinted its existing $ 1.4 billion Tranche A Term haander its existing senior secured
credit facility through the creation of new ternafs in the aggregate principal amount of $ 1.4li(the "New Term Loans") and receiv
consents from the existing lenders to approve iceatmendments to the existing senior secured cfadlity. The New Term Loans were
borrowed pursuant to an amended and restated egr@iement, which reflects the amendments apprioydde lenders. The New Term
Loans consist of: (a) a $ 600 million senior sedusgm loan which matures on February 1, 2016 ‘{(Tfnenche B 2016 Loan”), and (b) a $
815 million senior secured term loan which matueg\ugust 1, 2019 (the “Tranche B 2019 Loan”). Titerest rates on the loans are
LIBOR plus 3.25 percent for the Tranche B 2016 Laad LIBOR plus 3.75 percent for the Tranche B 2D48n, with LIBOR set at a
minimum of 1.5 percent on both loans. The Tranct29B6 Loan and the Tranche B 2019 Loan were pat@&9.5 percent and 99.0 perceht
par, respectively. The Company used the net pracieth the New Term Loans, along with cash on hémdepay Level 3 Financing, Inc.'
1.4 billion Tranche A Term Loan under the existargdit agreement maturing in March 2014 and widl oset proceeds along with cash on
hand to repay $ 15 million in principal amount ppremium for existing vendor financing obligations.
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Level 3 Financing, Inc. also has in place twirest rate swap agreements maturing in early 20dt effectively hedged the interest 1
on a portion of the Tranche A Term Loan that wédimagaced. As a result of the refinancing, the Conypaxpects that the swap agreements
will be deemed “ineffective” under GAAP and it witcognize a non-cash loss on the agreements wbidH be as much as $ 66 million
(excluding accrued interest) in third quarter 0120Going forward, the Company will reflect the nba in fair value of the swap in Other
Income in its Consolidated Statement of Operat@ma quarterly basis until maturity in early 2014.
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the Level 3 Communications, Inc. and itbsidiaries (“Level 3” or the
“Company”) consolidated financial statements (idahg the notes thereto), included elsewhere hemeththe Company's Form 10-K, as
amended, for the year ended December 31, 201 1vilddthe Securities and Exchange Commission.

This document contains forward looking statementsiaformation that are based on the beliefs ofagament as well as assumptions
made by and information currently available to @@mpany. When used in this document, the wordscipate”, “believe”, “plan”,
“estimate” and “expect” and similar expressionsthey relate to the Company or its managementnsaded to identify forward-looking
statements. Such statements reflect the currewswié the Company with respect to future eventsaredsubject to certain risks, uncertain
and assumptions. Should one or more of these oiskacertainties materialize, or should underly@sgumptions prove incorrect, actual
results may vary materially from those describethis document. For a more detailed descriptiothe$e risks and factors, please see the
Company's Form 18, as amended, for the year ended December 31, fd8dith the Securities and Exchange Commissiod Item 1A ir
Part Il of this Form 10-Q.

Executive Summary
Overview

The Company is a facilities-based provider of eadrcange of communications services. Revenue fonuenications services is
generally recognized on a monthly basis as theséss are provided. For contracts involving previhe, wavelength and dark fiber servis
Level 3 may receive up-front payments for servicelse delivered for a period of generally up toy2@rs. In these situations, Level 3 defers
the revenue and amortizes it on a straight-linésltasearnings over the term of the contract.

On October 4, 2011, a wholly owned subsidiary ofdle8 completed its amalgamation with Global Cnegsand the amalgamated en
became an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of tleenpany through a tax free, stock for stock transadthe "Amalgamation™). In addition,
after the close of business on October 19, 201\ell&completed a 1 for 15 reverse stock splitrasipusly approved by the Company's
stockholders in connection with its announcemertansfer the listing of its common stock to theaN¥ork Stock Exchange on October 20,
2011. The reverse stock split automatically comiieeery fifteen shares of issued and outstandinglL® common stock into one share of
common stock without any change in the par valuespare. All share and per share references faeaibds presented have been adjusted to
give effect to the reverse stock split.

Level 3, through its two 50% owned joint-venturgfage mines, one each in Montana and Wyoming, sodd primarily through long-
term contracts with public utilities. In Novembd¥12, Level 3 completed the sale of its coal mirbnginess to Ambre Energy Limited as |
of its long-term strategy to focus on core busirgssrations. As a result of the transaction, athefassets and liabilities associated with the
coal mining business have been removed from Lesdddlance sheet. The financial results of the koaing business are included in the
Company's consolidated results of operations thrdahg date of sale, and all periods presented heer revised to reflect the presentation
within discontinued operations.

Business Strategy and Objectives
The Company pursues the strategies discussedhinlit®usiness, "Business Overview and Strategylismussed in its Form 10-K, as
amended, for the year ended December 31, 201 &rtitplar, with respect to strategic financial atiees, the Company focuses its attention
on the following:
» growing Core Network Services revenue by increasalgs

» continually improving the customer experience wéase customer retention and reduce customer;

» completing the integration of acquired busines
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» reducing network costs and operating expe!
e achieving sustainable generation of positive cishs from operations in excess of capital expemdg
e continuing to show improvement in Adjusted EBITDa&s(defined in this Item below) as a percentagewdnue

e concentrating its capital expenditures on thoskrtelbgies and assets that enable the Company tageits Core Network Servict

e managing Wholesale Voice Services for margin cbation; an
» refinancing its future debt maturiti

The Company's management continues to review gifieg lines of business and service offeringsdtetmine how those lines of
business and service offerings enhance the Conmgpaotys on delivery of communications services rmeeting its financial objectives. To
the extent that certain lines of business or sergfterings are not considered to be compatiblé e delivery of the Company's services or
with meeting its financial objectives, Level 3 mexit those lines of business or stop offering themmices in part or in whole.

The successful integration of acquired businesgedievel 3, including Global Crossing, is impottémthe success of Level 3. The
Company must identify synergies and integrate aeduietworks and support organizations, while nad@mig the service quality levels
expected by customers to realize the anticipateéfiise of any acquisition. Successful integratidmmy acquired businesses will depend on
the Company’s ability to manage the operationdizeapportunities for revenue growth presentestogngthened service offerings and
expanded geographic market coverage, and elimiedtendant and excess costs to fully realize thee®g synergies. If the Company is not
able to efficiently and effectively integrate anysinesses or operations it acquires, the Compamyex@erience material negative
consequences to its business, financial conditioesults of operations.

The Company has also been focused on improvirmjitelity, financial condition, and extending theatarity dates of certain debt.

In August 2012, the Company completed the offeah§300 million aggregate principal amount of it8 %% Senior Notes due 2018
a private offering. The net proceeds from the dffgiof the notes will be used for general corpomatgoses, including the potential
repurchase, redemption, repayment or refinancirthefCompany's and its subsidiaries’ existing iteiess from time to time. See Note 13 -
Subsequent Events in the notes to the consolidetaedcial statements for additional information.

Also in August 2012, Level 3 Financing, Inc. comptéthe offering of $775 million aggregate prindipemount of its 7% Senior Notes
due 2020 in a private offering. The net proceedsifthe offering of the notes, along with cash ondhavere used to call for redemption all of
the Company's outstanding 8.75% Senior Notes di&,20cluding the payment of accrued interest gglieable premiums. See Note 13 -
Subsequent Events in the notes to the consolidetaedcial statements for additional information.

Also in August 2012, Level 3 Financing, Inc. reficad its existing $1.4 billion Tranche A Term Laamder its existing senior secured
credit facility through the creation of new ternafs in the aggregate principal amount of $1.41®bi(the "New Term Loans") and received
consents from existing lenders to approve certaiaralments to the existing senior secured crediitfad’he Company used the net proce
from the New Term Loans, along with cash on hamdepay Level 3 Financing, Inc.'s $1.4 billion Tehe A Term Loan under the existing
credit agreement maturing in March 2014 and widl nst proceeds along with cash on hand to repayr#llién in principal amount plus
premium for existing vendor financing obligatios&e Note 13 - Subsequent Events in the notes twotisolidated financial statements for
additional information.
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In March 2012, the Company exchanged approxim&ed0 million aggregate principal amount of its ¢ansling 15% Convertible
Senior Notes due 2013 for approximately 3.7 millgbrares of Level 3's common stock into which theesiavere convertible plus an
additional 1.7 million shares for a total of apgroately 5.4 million shares. See Note 8 - Long-T@&abt in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements for additional information.

In January 2012, Level 3 Financing, Inc., a fiist; wholly owned subsidiary of Level 3, issued$9illion aggregate principal amot
of its 8.625% Senior Notes due 2020 in a privadagaction. A portion of the net proceeds from tifierimg were used in February 2012 to
redeem all of Level 3 Financing's outstanding 9.2Z%8aior Notes due 2014 in aggregate principal amou®807 million.

The Company will continue to look for opportunittesimprove its financial position and focus its@arces on growing revenue and
managing costs for the business.

Revenue and Service Offering

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
(dollars in millions) 2012 2011 2012 2011
Core Network Services:
North America - Wholesale Channel $ 38z $ 332 % 76 % 65¢
North America - Enterprise Channel 621 331 1,231 654
EMEA - Wholesale Channel 91 51 182 101
EMEA - Enterprise Channel 81 28 16C 56
EMEA - U.K. Government Channel 42 — 90 —
Latin America - Wholesale Channel 33 1 67 2
Latin America - Enterprise Channel 13€ 1 274 1
Total Core Network Services $ 1,38¢ $ 744 % 2,76¢ 3 1,47:
Wholesale Voice Services and Other 20C 16¢ 404 354
Total Revenue $ 1,58¢ $ 91 % 3,172 $ 1,827

Total revenue consists of:
» Core Network Services revenue from colocation atdaknter services, transport and fiber, IP ana slatvices, and voice servic

* Wholesale Voice Services and Other revenue frorg tistance voice services, revenue from manageemauohd its related intercarr
compensation services and revenue from the "SBQdvi&ervices Agreement,” which was obtained thraughcquisition in 2005.

Core Network Services revenue represents highegimaervices and Wholesale Voice Services and Qéwemue represents lower
margin services. Core Network Services revenueiresg|different levels of investment and focus ara/jaes different contributions to the
Company's operating results than Wholesale Voicei@&es and Other revenue. Management of Level igved that growth in revenue from
its Core Network Services is critical to the lotegm success of its business. The Company alsevesliit must continue to effectively man
gross margin contribution from the Wholesale Vdiggvices component and the positive cash flows frmrOther revenue component of
Wholesale Voice Services and Other revenue. Thepaagnbelieves that trends in its communicationsrass are best gauged by analyzing
revenue changes in Core Network Services.

Core Network Services
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Growth in transport and fiber revenue is largelpetedent on increased demand for bandwidth seraicgsvailable capital of
companies requiring communications capacity foirtben use or in providing capacity as a servioevjater to their customers. These
expenditures may be in the form of monthly paymentspfront payments for private line, wavelength or dfibler services. The Company
focused on providing end-to-end transport and figgvices to its customers to directly connectarst locations with a private network.
Pricing for end-to-end metropolitan transport seggihave been relatively stable. For intercitydpamt and fiber services, the Company
continues to experience pricing pressure for ptanteint locations, particularly in locations whexréarge number of carriers co-locate their
facilities. An increase in demand may be offsetlbglines in unit pricing.

Colocation and data center services allow custotogptace their network equipment and servers itable environments maintained
the Company with high-speed links providing on a&tess to more than 45 countries. These servieeseaure, redundant and flexible to fit
the varying needs of the Company's customers. iGarinclude hosting network equipment used tospart high speed data and voice over
Level 3's global network; providing managed IT $g#% (hosting), installation, maintenance, storgg monitoring of enterprise services;
and providing comprehensive IT outsource solutions.

IP and data services primarily include the Compahigh speed Internet protocol service ("IP"), datid Internet access ("DIA")
service, Asynchronous Transfer mode ("ATM") andrfearelay services, virtual private network ("VPN®rvices, content delivery network
("CDN") service, media delivery service, Vyvx breadt service and Converged Business Network seivése! 3's IP and high speed IP
service is high quality and is offered in a variefycapacities. The Company's VPN service permitingesses of any size to replace multiple
networks with a single, cost-effective solutionttheeatly simplifies the converged transmissionaite, video, and data. This convergence to
a single platform can be obtained without sacnificihe quality of service or security levels offiteonal ATM and frame relay offerings.

VPN service also permits customers to prioritizeveek application traffic so that high priority dpgations, such as voice and video, are not
compromised in performance by the flow of low pitypapplications such as email.

The Company believes that one of the largest sewtuture incremental demand for the CompanyieGietwork Services will be
from customers that are seeking to distribute tfegiture rich content or video over the Internetvé&ue growth in this area is dependent on
the continued increase in demand from customerdhangdricing environment. An increase in the raligband security of information
transmitted over the Internet and declines in thet © transmit data have resulted in increasédidation of ecommerce or web based serv
by businesses. Although the pricing for data sesvis currently relatively stable, the IP markegeserally characterized by price
compression and high unit growth rates dependirn tipe type of service. The Company experiencez mdmpression in the high-speed IP
and voice services markets in 2011, which has coatl in 2012.

The following provides a discussion of the Compsu@ore Network Services revenue in terms of therprise and wholesale channels.

* The enterprise channel includes large, multiematl enterprises requiring large amounts of badtiwio support their business
operations, such as financial services companéesdftitare companies, content providers, and panhlsearch engine companies. It
also includes medium enterprises and regional cepoviders who buy services regionally or locadly well as government
markets, including the U.S. federal government syystems integrators supporting the U.S. federa¢gonent, U.S. state and local
governments, academic consortia, and certain adadestitutions. Included in the enterprise chanbek broken out separately in
the table above, is the U.K. government channeichvimcludes revenue primarily from the governmsatttor in the U.K.

e The wholesale channel includes revenue frommmnt and alternative carriers in each of the regiglobal carriers, wireless
carriers, cable companies, satellite companiesyait# service providers.

The Company believes that the alignment of Corevidet Services around channels should allow it feedgrowth while enabling it to
better focus on the needs of its customers. EatthesE channels is supported by
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dedicated employees in sales. Each of these clsisnalkso supported by naledicated, centralized service delivery and managénproduc
management and development, corporate marketiogaghetwork services, engineering, informatiorhrextogy, and corporate functions,
including legal, finance, strategy and human resesir

Whol esal e Voice Services and Other

The Company offers wholesale voice services thigetdarge and existing markets. The revenue piaddot wholesale voice services
large; however, the pricing and margins are expkitteontinue to decline over time as a resulhefriew low-cost IP and optical-based
technologies. In addition, the market for wholesaliee services is being targeted by many compstigeveral of which are larger and have
more financial resources than the Company.

The Company also has other revenue derived fromnmaervices that are not critical areas of empghasithe Company, including
revenue from managed modem and its related intg@ca@ompensation services and SBC Contract Sesyvigkich includes revenue from the
"SBC Master Services Agreement,” which was obtaindgtle December 2005 acquisition of WilTel Comnuaions Group, LLC. The
Company and its customers continue to see consumigrate from narrow band dial-up services to higdpeed broadband services as the
narrow band market matures. The Company expectimggeclines in the other revenue component of Méade Voice Services and Other
similar to what has been experienced over thegmatral years.

The Company receives compensation from other camiben it terminates traffic originating on thaseriers' networks. This
intercarrier compensation is based on interconoectgreements with the respective carriers or ratesdated by the Federal
Communications Commission ("FCC"). The Companyihtsconnection agreements in place for the majarfitraffic subject to intercarrier
compensation. Along with addressing other mattard\ovember 18, 2011, the FCC established a praspéntercarrier compensation
framework for terminating switched access and V@wer Internet Protocol ("VolP") traffic, with elents of it becoming effective beginn
on December 29, 2011. Under the framework, mostiteating switched access charges and all inteeracdmpensation charges are capped
at current levels, and will be reduced to zero paerrelevant to Level 3, a six year transitioriguebeginning July 1, 2012. Several states,
industry groups, and other telecommunications egsffiled petitions in federal court for reconsatén of the framework with the FCC,
although the outcome of those petitions is unptatlle. A majority of the Company's existing interéar compensation revenue is associated
with agreements that have expired terms, but reefdéttive in evergreen status. As these and atiberconnection agreements expire, the
Company will continue to evaluate simply allowifgn to continue in evergreen status (so long asdhsterparty allows the same) or
negotiating new agreements. The Company earnsar@r compensation revenue from providing managedem services, which are
declining. The Company also receives intercarmgngensation from its voice services. In this cagercarrier compensation is reported
within Core Network Services revenue.

For a detailed description of the Company's breadje of communications services, please see Ilt@8usiness - "Our Services
Offerings" of the Company's Form 10-K, as amendiedthe year ended December 31, 2011 filed withSkeurities and Exchange
Commission.

Critical Accounting Policies

Refer to Item 7 of the Company's Form 10-K, as atednfor the year ended December 31, 2011 for erigéion of the Company's
critical accounting policies.
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Results of Operationsfor the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
Change Change

(dollars in millions) 2012 2011 % 2012 2011 %
Revenue $ 158 $ 91z 74% $ 3,17 $ 1,827 74 %
Cost of Revenue 64¢ 347 87 % 1,30¢ 704 85 %
Depreciation and Amortization 191 20¢€ (7)% 37¢ 40¢ (8)%
Selling, General and
Administrative 61C 357 71% 1,232 714 73%
Restructuring Charges 4 — NM 8 — NM
Total Costs and Expenses 1,45: 91C 60 % 2,92: 1,827 60 %
Operating Income 13¢ 3 NM 24¢ — NM
Other Income (Expense):
Interest income 1 — NM 2 — NM
Interest expense (181) (260) 13% (370) (317) 17 %
Loss on extinguishment of
debt, net — (23) (100% (61) (43 42 %
Other, net ) 3 NM 2 6 (67)%
Total Other Expense (187) (180) 4% (427) (3549) 21%
Loss Before Income Taxes (54) () (69)% a7¢) (359) (50)%
Income Tax Expense (8) 3 167 % (22 (30 27%
Loss from Continuing
Operations (62) (180) (66)% (200 (389 (48)%
Loss from Discontinued
Operations, Net — Q) (100% — 2 (100%
Net Loss $ (62 $  (18)) 66% $ (200 $ (386 (48)%

NM — Not meaningful

42




Table of Contents

Discussion of all significant variances:

Total Revenue by Service Offering

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
(dollars in millions) 2012 2011 Change % 2012 2011 Change %
Core Network Services $ 138 $ 744 86% $ 2,768 $ 1,47: 88%
Wholesale Voice Services
and Other 20C 16¢ 18% 404 354 14%
Total Revenue $ 158t $ 91z 7% $ 3,172 $ 1,82i 74%

Revenueincreased 74% to $1.586 billion in the three momtided June 30, 2012 from $913 million in the saem#od of 2011 and
increased 74% to $ 3.172 billion in the six morghded June 30, 2012 from $ 1.827 billion in theesaeriod of 2011. The increase is
primarily driven by the additional revenue assaamiatvith the Global Crossing acquisition completethie fourth quarter of 2011. Excluding
revenue from the Global Crossing acquisition, rexefiom enterprise customers contributed to thevtfran Core Network Services revenue.

The Company experienced growth in each of its sergfferings during the three and six months erldea: 30, 2012 compared to the
same periods in 2011 as a result of the Globalgitgsacquisition. Excluding revenue from the GloBebssing acquisition, strong revenue
growth in IP and data services and voice servicemd the three and six months ended June 30, @@&2Xriven primarily by end customer
demand for content delivery over the internet amgmprise bandwidth, as well as increased usageofoe services. Growth in transport and
fiber services and collocation and datacenter seswas more modest during the first half of 2012.

Core Network Services revenue increased in thehNamierica, EMEA and Latin America regions during three and six months
ended June 30, 2012 compared to the same peri@fs afprimarily as a result of the Global Crossacguisition. Excluding revenue from
the Global Crossing acquisition, revenue increasélde North America region during the three andnsonths ended June 30, 20dd@mpare
to the same periods of 2011.

Wholesale Voice Services and Other revenue incteiasine three and six months ended June 30, 26tipared to the same periods in
2011 as a result of the Global Crossing acquisittortluding revenue from the Global Crossing adtjais, Wholesale Voice Services and
Other revenue decreased in the three and six menttexd June 30, 2012 due to declines in usageCohmany continues to manage its
combined wholesale voice services platform for rimaggowth, and expects continued volatility in reue as a result of this strategy. In
addition, the Company expects managed modem and@@B@act Services revenue to continue to declireetd an increase in the number of
subscribers migrating to broadband services ardrasult of the migration of the SBC traffic to thR€&T network, respectively.

Cost of Revenuéncludes leased capacity, right-of-way costs, accharges, satellite transponder lease costs,thrdthird party costs
directly attributable to the network, but excludiepreciation and amortization and related impaitnegpenses.

Cost of revenue as a percentage of total revensetv# in both the three and six months ended Jon203.2 compared to 38% and
39% in the same periods of the prior year. Thegase is due to inclusion of costs associated Wwél3obal Crossing acquisition, which has
lower gross margins, in the current year periodspared to the same periods of 2011. This increasepartially offset by an improving gre
margin mix from higher margin on-net Core Netwodnfces and a decrease in lower margin WholesaieeV@ervices and Other.
Additionally, the Company continues to implemeritiaives to reduce both fixed and variable netwexikenses.

Depreciation and Amortization expense decreased 7% to $191 million in the threstins ended June 30, 2012 from $206 million in
the same period in 2011 and decreased 8% to $ 8li@nn the six months ended
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June 30, 2012 from $ 409 million in the same penp#011. The decrease is attributable to a changee estimated useful lives of certain of
the Companys property, plant and equipment that resultedriedaction of depreciation expense in the first b&2012 compared to the sa
period of 2011. The change in accounting estimae applied on a prospective basis effective Octbp2011 as required under the
accounting standard related to changes in accauatitimates. This decrease was partially offsetduitional depreciation and amortization
as a result of the Global Crossing acquisition.

Selling, General and Administrative ("SG&A") expenses include salaries, wages and related tge(infiluding non-cash, stodkasec
compensation expenses), property taxes, travelranse, rent, contract maintenance, advertisingetion expense on asset retirement
obligations and other administrative expenses. S@&penses also include certain network relatedresggesuch as network facility rent,
utilities and maintenance costs.

SG&A expenses increased 71% to $610 million intkliee months ended June 30, 2012 compared to $B&hnn the same period of
2011 and increased 73% to $ 1.232 billion in thhesdnths ended June 30, 2012 from $ 714 milliothensame period in 2011. The increase
is primarily due to SG&A expenses associated withGlobal Crossing acquisition, including integratcosts of approximately $17 million
and $32 million for the three and six months endiete 30, 2012, higher employee compensation aatedetosts as the Company continued
to increase its sales, support and customer seteioeery headcount since the first half of 201dd anerit increases effective in the first
quarter of 2012. These increases were partiallseothy cost synergies achieved as a result of bbleaGCrossing acquisition in the three and
six months ended June 30, 2012 .

Also included in SG&A expenses in the three andhsbnths ended June 30, 2012 were $29 million a@dn$iiion, respectively, and in
the three and six months ended June 30, 2011 filiGn and $42 million, respectively, of non-castock-based compensation expenses
related to grants of outperform stock options,rietstd stock units, accruals for the Company’s @igonary bonus, incentive and retention
plans and shares issued for the Company’s matdangibution for the 401(k) plan.

Restructuring Chargesin the three and six months ended June 30, 201€ $&million and $ 8 million , respectively, comedito less
than $1 million in the same periods of 2011. Theéase in the three and six months ended June)2@,@mpared to the same periods of
2011 was primarily due to reductions in headcosgsbaiated with the Global Crossing acquisitionthesCompany had not initiated any
significant new workforce reduction plans in 2011.

The Company may initiate additional restructuricg\dties in 2012 in connection with the effortsdptimize its cost structure or in
connection with the Amalgamation of Global CrossiAdditional restructuring activities could resintadditional headcount reductions and
related charges.

Adjusted EBITDA , as defined by the Company, is net income (lassh fthe consolidated statements of operations b€figrincome
tax benefit (expense), (2) total other income (e, (3) norcash impairment charges included within restruntudharges, (4) depreciati
and amortization expense, (5) non-cash stock cosgpiem expense included within selling, general athahinistrative expenses and (6)
discontinued operations.

Adjusted EBITDA is not a measurement under geneealtepted accounting principles ("GAAP") and maylre used in the same way
by other companies. Management believes that AefluSBITDA is an important part of the Company’smial reporting and is a key
measure used by management to evaluate profitahiil operating performance of the Company andakemesource allocation decisions.
Management believes such measurement is espdaoiglyrtant in a capital-intensive industry suchelsdommunications. Management also
uses Adjusted EBITDA to compare the Company’s parémce to that of its competitors and to elimireggain non-cash and non-operating
items in order to consistently measure from petiogeriod its ability to fund capital expenditurésnd growth, service debt and determine
bonuses.

Adjusted EBITDA excludes non-cash impairment charged non-cash stock compensation expense bedatigenmn-cash nature of
these items. Adjusted EBITDA also excludes inteir@sdme, interest expense and income
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tax benefit (expense) because these items areia@&sbwith the Company’s capitalization and taxctures. Adjusted EBITDA also excludes
depreciation and amortization expense because tleseash expenses reflect the effect of capitedstments which management believes
are better evaluated through cash flow measurgsistedi EBITDA excludes net other income (expensephse these items are not related to
the primary operations of the Company.

There are limitations to using non-GAAP financigdasures, including the difficulty associated witimparing companies that use
similar performance measures whose calculationsdifter from the Company'’s calculations. Additiolyalthis financial measure does not
include certain significant items such as intemesbme, interest expense, income tax benefit (esqeniepreciation and amortization expe
non-cash impairment charges, non-cash stock corapensxpense and net other income (expense). fedjisBITDA should not be
considered a substitute for other measures of éiahperformance reported in accordance with GAAP.

The following information provides a reconciliatiohNet Income (Loss) to Adjusted EBITDA as defirsdthe Company (dollars in
millions):

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Net Loss $ 62 $ (181) $ (200 $ (38€)
Income Tax Expense 8 3 22 30
Total Other Expense 187 18C 427 354
Depreciation and Amortization

Expense 191 20¢€ 37¢ 40¢
Non-Cash Compensation Expens 29 17 53 42
Discontinued Operations of Coal

Mining Business — 1 — 2
Adjusted EBITDA $ 35 % 22¢ % 68C $ 451

Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA was $353 million iretthree months ended June 30, 2012 compared torf#2f in the same period
of 2011 and was $680 million in the six months ehdene 30, 2012 compared to $451 million in theesperiod of 2011. The increase in
Adjusted EBITDA in the three and six months endeaeJ30, 2012 is primarily attributable to AdjustEBITDA associated with the Global
Crossing acquisition and growth in the Companyghbi incremental margin Core Network Services raeeand continued improvements in
cost of revenue.

Interest Expenseincreased 13% to $ 181 million in the three momttiezl June 30, 2012 from $ 160 million in the sam@op of 2011
and increased 17% to $ 370 million in the six merghded June 30, 2012 from $ 317 million in theespariod of 2011. Interest expense
increased as a result of higher average debt bmfan@012 compared to 2011, including financingoasated with the Global Crossing
acquisition, partially offset by lower cost of bowing on refinanced debt.

The Company expects annual interest expense in 20 approximately $740 million based on the Canys outstanding debt as of
June 30, 2012, and taking into consideration threent interest rates on the Company's variabedabt and the August 2012 issuance of
$300 million aggregate principal amount of 8.875&hi8r Notes due 2019, the $775 million aggregaiteciral amount of 7% Senior Notes
due 2020 marketed in August 2012 (including thenegtion of the Company's 8.75% Senior Notes du@R@hd the incurrence of $1.415
billion of New Term Loans under the amended anthted credit agreement (along with the repaymetteexisting $1.4 billion Tranche A
Term Loan and $15 million for existing vendor firtémg obligations). See Note 8 - Long-Term Debt Biade 13 - Subsequent Events of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for ndeteails regarding the Company's financing actsi
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Loss on Extinguishment of Debt, netvas nil and $ 61 million in the three and six mangimded June 30, 2012 , compared to a loss of
23 million and $ 43 million in the three and six mias ended June 30, 2011 . The loss recorded d2@ihg was related to a charge of
approximately $22 million related to the redemptidrihe 9.25% Senior Notes due 2014 and a chargpmbximately $39 million as a result
of the exchange of a portion of the 15% Convertid@ior Notes due 2013 for approximately 5.4 millghares of Level 3 stock. The loss
recorded during 2011 was related to a $23 millioarge recognized for the portion of the 9.25% SelNmtes due 2014 redeemed in April
2011 and a $20 million charge recorded in the fsirter of 2011 resulting from the redemptionhaf 5.25% Convertible Senior Notes due
2011 in February 2011 and the exchange of the 9btv€tible Senior Discount Notes due 2013 in Jan@adl. See Note 8 - Long-Term
Debt, of the Notes to the Consolidated Financiate3thents for more details regarding the Compamgsing activities.

The Company may enter into additional transactinribe future to repurchase or exchange existiryy that may result in gains or
losses on the extinguishment of debt.

Other, netwas $ 7 million of expense and $ 2 million of ina@m the three and six months ended June 30, 20hpared to $ 3
million and $ 6 million of income in the same pelsoof the prior year. Other, net is primarily compd of foreign currency gains and losses,
gains and losses on the sale of non-operatingsaasdtother income.

Income Tax Expensevas $ 8 million and $ 22 million in the three amdmonths ended June 30, 2012 compared to $ 3omidnd $30
million in the same periods of 2011. The incomedagense in 2012 was primarily related to incomxeggor Latin American entities
acquired as part of the Global Crossing acquisifidre income tax expense during the six monthseddae 30, 2011 is primarily related to
an out of period adjustment due to taxable tempatdferences associated with certain indefiniteetl intangible assets that the Company is
unable to offset with deductible temporary differes.

The Company also incurs income tax expense ataiideito income in various Level 3 subsidiaries #ratrequired to file state or
foreign income tax returns on a separate legatyelnéisis. The Company also recognizes accruecesttand penalties in income tax expense
related to uncertain tax benefits.

Loss from Discontinued Operationsvas $ 1 million and $2 million in the three and sirnths ended June 30, 2011 , respectively.
Level 3 sold its coal mining business in the fouqtiarter of 2011, and accordingly, reflected thal coining business as discontinued
operations in 2011.

Financial Condition — For the six months ended Jun&0, 2012 and 2011

Cash flows provided by operating activities, inuggtactivities and financing activities for the snonths ended June 30, 20drd 2011
respectively, are summarized as follows:

Six Months Ended June 30,

(dollars in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities of

Continuing Operations $ 10€ $ 132 % (24)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities of

Continuing Operations (309 (267) 42
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities of

Continuing Operations 18 104 (86)
Net Cash Used in Discontinued Operations — 4 4
Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash

Equivalents (2 3 5)

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ (189 $ (32 $ (159
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Operating Activities of Continuing Operations

Cash provided by operating activities of continuapgrations was $ 108 million in the six monthsezhdune 30, 2012 compared with
cash provided by operating activities of $ 132 imilin the same period in 2011. The decrease in pesvided by operating activities of
continuing operations was primarily due to higheeiest paid and an increase in the use of cashdiking capital items, including a
reduction in payables related to legacy Global Sirmssuppliers, during the first half of 2012.

I nvesting Activities of Continuing Operations

Cash used in investing activities of continuing ragiens increased in the six months ended Jun2®(® compared to the same period
of 2011 as a result of additional capital expenduwhich totaled $ 318 million in the six monérmgled June 30, 2012 compared to $ 237
million in the same period of the prior year. Therease was primarily driven by the inclusion oblill Crossing in the Company's results
since the acquisition date.

Financing Activities of Continuing Operations

Cash provided by financing activities of continuimgerations decreased in the six months ended3yr#012 compared to the same
period of 2011 as a result of greater paymentsndrrepurchases of debt and capital leases durihg. Zke Note 8 - Long-Term Debt, of the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementsnfune details regarding the Company's debt trarmactiuring 2012

Cash Flows of Discontinued Operations

Net cash used in discontinued operations was $libmin the six months ended June 30, 2011 . Then@any completed the sale of its
coal mining business on November 14, 2011.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company incurred a net loss of $ 200 milliothie six months ended June 30, 2012 and $ 386miilithe same period of 2011.
connection with its continuing operations, the Campused $318 million for capital expenditures &8 million of cash was provided by
financing activities in the six months ended JuBg2®12. This compares to $237 million of cash Usedapital expenditures and $104
million of cash flows provided by financing actieis in the same period of the prior year.

Net cash interest payments are expected to incteaggproximately $710 million in 2012 from the $5million made in 2011 based on
forecasted interest rates on the Company's variabdedebt outstanding as of June 30, 2012 andubeast 2012 issuance of $300 million
aggregate principal amount of 8.875% Senior Notes2019, the $775 million aggregate principal amaifirr% Senior Notes due 2020
marketed in August 2012 (including the redemptibthe Company's 8.75% Senior Notes due 2017), laméhcurrence of $1.415 billion of
New Term Loans under the amended and restated eggagiement (along with the repayment of the exgs$il.4 billion Tranche A Teri
Loan and $15 million for existing vendor financiagligations).

Capital expenditures for 2012 are expected to rerm@anstant as a percentage of revenue with 20ltheaSompany invests in base
capital expenditures (estimated capital requirekep the network operating efficiently and suppesw service development) with the
remaining capital expenditures expected to beatitcess-based, which is tied to a specific custorvenue opportunity, and partly
project-based where capital is used to expandeheark based on the Company's expectation thatrbject will eventually lead to
incremental revenue. As of June 30, 2012 , the Gmypiad debt contractual obligations, includingitedyiease and commercial mortgage
obligations, and excluding interest, premium arstdiints on debt issuance and fair value adjustmnein$82 million in the remaining six
months in 2012, $211 million in 2013 and $1.42%dml in 2014.

In August 2012, the Company completed the offeah§300 million aggregate principal amount of it8 %% Senior Notes due 2018
a private offering. The net proceeds from the dffgiof the notes will be used for general corpomatgoses, including the potential
repurchase, redemption, repayment or refinancingefCompany's and its subsidiaries' existing iteess from time to time.

Also in August 2012, Level 3 Financing, Inc. coniptethe offering of $775 million aggregate prindipemoun
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t of its 7% Senior Notes due 2020 in a privaterirfie The net proceeds from the offering of theesptilong with cash on hand, were used to
call for redemption all of the Company's outstagddn75% Senior Notes due 2017, including the payrakaccrued interest and applicable
premiums.

Also in August 2012, Level 3 Financing, Inc. refigad its existing $1.4 billion Tranche A Term Laarder its existing senior secured
credit facility through the creation of new ternats in the aggregate principal amount of $1.41®biknd received consents from existing
lenders to approve certain amendments to the egistnior secured credit facility. The Company ubedet proceeds from the New Term
Loans, along with cash on hand, to repay Levelnagting, Inc.'s $1.4 billion Tranche A Term Loardeanthe existing credit agreement
maturing in March 2014 and will use net proceeds@lwith cash on hand to repay $15 million in pigat amount plus premium for existing
vendor financing obligations.

In March 2012, the Company entered into an exchaggeement for a portion of its 15% ConvertibleiSeNotes due 2013. Pursuant
to the agreement, approximately $100 million aggtegrincipal amount of Level 3's outstanding 156t&rtible Senior Notes due 2013
were exchanged for approximately 3.7 million sharfelsevel 3's common stock into which the notesenegnvertible plus an additional 1.7
million shares for a total of approximately 5.4 linih shares. The consideration was based on thkatarice for these notes which included
an inducement premium and included a payment foued and unpaid interest from January 15, 201dutiir March 15, 2012 of
approximately $2 million. This transaction did matlude the payment by the Company of any cash.Qdrapany recognized a loss on
extinguishment of $39 million in the first quartr2012 as a result of this exchange of the 15%v€dible Senior Notes due 2013. The
transaction will reduce cash interest expense pyagmately $15 million on an annual basis.

In January 2012, Level 3 Financing, Inc. issuedd$®dlion aggregate principal amount of its 8.625%nior Notes due 2020 in a priv
transaction. A portion of the net proceeds fromdfiering were used to redeem all of Level 3 Finag's outstanding 9.25% Senior Notes
2014 in aggregate principal amount of $807 millibhe Company recognized a loss on extinguishmefiafmillion in the first quarter of
2012 as a result of the redemption of the 9.Zior Notes due 2014. The remaining proceeds itaiespurchase money indebtedness u
the existing senior secured credit agreement ashehitures of Level 3 and will be used solely to ftimel cost of construction, installation,
acquisition, lease, development or improvemenngfBelecommunications/IS Assets (as defined irettisting senior secured credit
agreement and indentures of Level 3), includingctsh purchase price of any past, pending or ftcgeisitions.

For information related to financing activities tlo@curred during 2011, see Item 7 of the Compdrgten 10-K, as amended, for the
year ended December 31, 20

Level 3 had $ 733 million of cash and cash equivalen hand at June 30, 2012 . In addition, $5%anibf current and non-current
restricted cash and securities are used to cdllaeroutstanding letters of credit, long-term deloid certain operating obligations of the
Company. Based on information available at thigtithe Company believes that its current liquiditgl anticipated future cash flows from
operations will be sufficient to fund its busindssat least the next twelve months.

The Company may need to refinance all or a pouidits indebtedness at or before maturity and capravide assurances that it will
able to refinance any such indebtedness on comatlgreéasonable terms or at all. In addition, ther@any may elect to secure additional
capital in the future, at acceptable terms, to maprits liquidity or fund acquisitions. In additioim an effort to reduce future cash interest
payments as well as future amounts due at matorrity extend debt maturities, Level 3 or its adfidis may, from time to time, issue new d
enter into debt for debt, debt for equity or casim$actions to purchase its outstanding debt s&suim the open market or through privately
negotiated transactions. Level 3 will evaluate smgh transactions in light of the existing markatditions and the possible dilutive effect to
stockholders. The amounts involved in any suchstiation, individually or in the aggregate, may tegerial.

In addition to raising capital through the debt aqdity markets, the Company may sell or disposexisting
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businesses, investments or other non-core assets.

Consolidation of the communications industry magttwie. Level 3 will continue to evaluate consadlida opportunities and could
make additional acquisitions in the future.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Level 3 has not entered into off-balance sheengaments.

ltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Alout Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

Level 3 is subject to market risks arising frommfp@s in interest rates. As of June 30, 2012 , tragany had borrowed a total of
approximately $2.9 billion primarily under a Senfecured Term Loan (excluding discounts) and Figaflate Senior Notes due 2015 that
bear interest at LIBOR rates plus an applicablegmaiAs the LIBOR rates fluctuate, so too will tinéerest expense on amounts borrowed
under the debt instruments. The weighted averageeist rate on the variable rate instruments a 3002012 , was approximately 4.1%.

In March 2007, Level 3 Financing, Inc. entered itto interest rate swap agreements to hedge taeesttpayments on $1 billion
notional amount of floating rate debt. The two et rate swap agreements are with different copatges and are for $500 million each.
The interest rate swap agreements were effectigimbieg in 2007 and mature in January 2014. Unidetérms of the interest rate swap
agreements, Level 3 receives interest paymentsilmaseolling three month LIBOR terms and pays iestiat the fixed rate of 4.93% under
one arrangement and 4.92% under the other. Leltab3lesignated the interest rate swap agreemeatsas$ flow hedge on the interest
payments for $1 billion of floating rate debt. S¢ete 13 - Subsequent Events of the Notes to Catetelil Financial Statements for more
details regarding the Company's interest rate swaps

The remaining, or unhedged, variable rate debppf@imately $1.9 billion has a weighted averaderigst rate of 4.9% at June 30,
2012 . A hypothetical increase in the weighted agermrate by 1% point (i.e. a weighted averageaa$e9%) would increase the Company's
annual interest expense by approximately $19 mill&t June 30, 2012 , the Company had $5.6 bileeluding fair value adjustments,
discounts and premiums) of fixed rate debt beaaimgighted average interest rate of 9.1%. A dedfineterest rates in the future will not
benefit the Company with respect to the fixed dabt due to the terms and conditions of the indesttelating to that debt that would reqt
the Company to repurchase the debt at specifiadipmas if redeemed early.

Indicated changes in interest rates are based pottingtical movements and are not necessarily itidecaf the actual results that may
occur. Future earnings and losses will be affebtedctual fluctuations in interest rates and faneigrrency rates.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

The Company conducts a portion of its businessiireacies other than the U.S. dollar, the curranayhich the Company's
consolidated financial statements are reportedreSpondingly, the Company's operating results cbalddversely affected by foreign
currency exchange rate volatility relative to th&lollar. The Company's European subsidiariescartdin Latin American subsidiaries use
the local currency as their functional currencytheesmajority of their revenue and purchases aresticted in their local currencies. Although
the Company continues to evaluate strategies tgaét risks related to the effect of fluctuationsurrencyexchange rates, the Company
likely recognize gains or losses from internatiamahsactions. Changes in foreign currency rateflcadversely affect the Company's
operating results.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

(a) Disclosure controls and procedures. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chiefdfinial Officer have evaluated the effectiveness
of the Company’s disclosure controls and proced@agslefined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) uthdeBecurities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended (the “Exchange Act”), as of June 302.2Based upon such review, the Chief Executivec®ffand Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controtsmncedures are effective and are designed taetisat information required to be
disclosed by the Company in the reports it filesulvmits under the Exchange Act is recorded, pestksummarized and reported within the
time periods specified in the Securities and ExgeaBiommission rules and forms. Disclosure contiots procedures include, without
limitation, controls and procedures designed tamnthat information required to be disclosed bysaner in reports it files or submits under
the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicatétet€ompany’s management, including its princgeadcutive officer and principal
financial officer, as appropriate to allow timelgdaisions regarding required disclosure.

(b) Internal controls. The Company completed the amalgamation of Globas§ing on October 4, 2011. The Company is current®grating
policies, processes, people, technology, and dpagabf the combined Company. Management will ¢argito evaluate the Company's
internal controls over financial reporting as intiaues its integration of Global Crossing. Theeravno other changes in the Company's
internal control over financial reporting identidién connection with the evaluation required byagmaph (d) of Exchange Act Rules 18201
15d-15 that occurred during the second quartef@P2hat have materially affected, or are reasgnlid#ly to materially affect, the
Company's internal control over financial reporting

Part Il - Other Information
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

For information regarding legal proceedings in vahiee are involved, see Note 11, “Commitments, Cay@ncies and Other Items,” to
our consolidated financial statements includedhis quarterly report on Form 10-Q.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information set forth imstreport, you should carefully consider the festdiscussed in Part I, “ltem 1A. “Risk
Factors” in Level 3's Form 10-K, as amended, ferythar ended December 31, 2011, which could m#yeaihect Level 3's business,
financial condition or future results. The risksdeébed in Level 3's Form 1KR-are not the only risks facing the Company. Adudhitl risks an
uncertainties not currently known to Level 3 orttih@urrently deems to be immaterial also may mallg adversely affect Level 3's business,
financial condition and/or operating results. Thieas not been a material change from the risk fadgheluded in the Company's Form 10-K,
as amended, for the year ended December 31, 28 supplemented by the Company's Quarterly Repofoom 10-Q for the three months
ended March 31, 2012.
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Item 6. Exhibits

3.1.1
3.1z
10.1

12
31.1
31.2
32.1

32.2

101

Exhibits incorporated by reference are indicatedarentheses.

Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificaténcorporation of Level 3 Communications, Inc.
Conformed Copy of Restated Certificate of Inocogtion of Level 3 Communications, Inc.

Level 3 Communications, Inc. Stock Plan, effectifay 24, 2012 (incorporated by reference to ExHibitl
of the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filedviay 25, 2012).

Statements Re Computation of Ratios.

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of thaeElExecutive Officer.

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of thae@trinancial Officer.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbare®xley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbar&3xley Act of 2002.

The following materials from the Quarterly Repontfeorm 10-Q of Level 3 Communications, Inc. for the
quarter ended June 30, 2012, formatted in XBRL ¢eXible Business Reporting Language);

(i) Consolidated Statements of Operations, (ii) €didated Statements of Comprehensive Loss, (iii)
Supplementary Stockholders' Equity Information,@g9nsolidated Balance Sheets, (v) Consolidated
Statements of Cash flows and (vi) Notes to Conat#id Financial Statementst.

T Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, therbdve Data Files on Exhibit 101 hereto are deenwdiled or part of a registration
statement or prospectus for purposes of Sectioms 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amendesidaemed not filed for purposes of
Section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act 8418s amended, and otherwise are not subjecthiiity under those sections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréport to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

Dated: August 6, 2012 /sl Eric J. Mortensen
Eric J. Mortensen
Senior Vice President, Controller and Priatifdccounting Officer
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Exhibit 3.1.1
CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
of
RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
of

LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

The undersigned, being a duly appointed officdtenfel 3 Communications, Inc. (the “Corporation”), a
corporation organized and existing under and biyeiof the Delaware General Corporation Law (th&QL."), for
the purpose of amending the Corporation's Rest@aéetificate of Incorporation, as amended (the “Riest Certificate
of Incorporation”) filed pursuant to Section 102tlké DGCL, hereby certifies, pursuant to Sectiofd @&nd 103 of the
DGCL, as follows:

First : That the Board of Directors of the Corporationa aneeting of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation, adopted resolutions setting forth réate proposed amendment to the Restated Cergfimfat
Incorporation, as amended, declaring said amendtodo@ advisable, calling for the stockholdershef Corporation t
consider said amendment at the next meeting ddtthekholders and calling for a special meetindhefdtockholders
of said corporation for consideration thereof.

Second: The amendment effected hereby was duly authobyetie Corporation's Board of Directors and
stockholders in accordance with the provisionsegt®ns 141, 228 and 242 of the DGCL and shall{ee@ted,
acknowledged and filed in accordance with Secti@® df the DGCL.

Third : That Article IV of the Restated Certificate otbrporation, filed with the Secretary of Statelwd Stat:
of Delaware on May 22, 2008, as amended on Mag@Jd9, May 25, 2010, October 3, 2011 and Octobe2Q®], is
hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:

“‘“ARTICLE IV
AUTHORIZED CAPITAL STOCK

The total number of shares of capital stock whigh@orporation shall have the authority to issue is
353,333,333 shares, consisting of 343,333,333 sluiréommon Stock, par value $.01 per share (tloariiGon
Stock”) and 10,000,000 shares of Preferred Stagkyalue $.01 per share (“Preferred Stock”).”

Fourth: That the capital of the Corporation shall not sueeed under or by reason of said amendments.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Certificate of Amendment has been signed3@iéday of May, 2012 by the
undersigned who affirms the statements containegirhas true under penalties of perjury.

LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

BY: [/s/ Thomas C. Stortz

NAME: Thomas C. Stortz

TITLE: Executive Vice President, Chief
Administrative Officer and Secretary




Exhibit 3.1.2

CONFORMED COPY TO REFLECT AMENDMENTS MADE THROUGH M AY 30, 2012

* * *

RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

Pursuant to Section 242 and 245
of the Delaware General Corporation Law

ARTICLE |
NAME

The name of the Corporation is: Level 3 Commundga;j Inc.

ARTICLE II
REGISTERED OFFICE AND REGISTERED AGENT

The address of the registered office of the Cotpmmran the State of Delaware is 1209 Orange Sti&@mington, New Castle
County, Delaware 19801. The name of its registageht at such address is Corporation Trust CompbiBy. The registered office and
registered agent change reflected here effectibeuaey 22, 2012].

ARTICLE Il
PURPOSES

The nature of the business or purposes to be ctedioc promoted by the Corporation is to engaganinlawful act or activity for
which corporations may be organized under the Gé@orporation Law of the State of Delaware (th&sCL”").

ARTICLE IV
AUTHORIZED CAPITAL STOCK

The total number of shares of capital stock whigh@orporation shall have the authority to issugbi3,333,333, consisting of
343,333,333 shares of Common Stock, par valueg0s%hare (the “Common Stock”) and 10,000,000 shafr®referred Stock, par value
$.01 per share (“Preferred Stock”).

ARTICLE V
COMMON STOCK

A. Dividends. After dividends payable on any PreddrStock have been declared and set aside orPsafdrred Stock having a
preference over the Common Stock with respectaégtyment of such dividends, the holders of ComBtock shall be entitled to receive,
when and as declared, out of assets and fundsyleyalilable therefor, cash or n@ash dividends payable as and when the Board etir:
in its sole business judgment so declares. Any dudtiend shall be payable ratably to all recortteos of Common Stock as of the record
date fixed by the Board of Directors in accordawié the By-laws of the Corporation for the paymégreof.

B. Liquidation Rights. In the event of any voluntar involuntary liquidation, dissolution or windjrup of the Corporation
(“Liquidation”), the holders of Common Stock themtstanding shall be entitled to be paid ratablyafihe assets and funds of the
Corporation available for distribution to its stbckders, after and subject to the payment in fulllbamounts required to be distributed to the
holders of any Preferred Stock upon Liquidationaarount equal to their share (including any dedidng unpaid dividends on the Common
Stock, subject to




proportionate adjustment in the event of any sttieldend, stock split, stock distribution or comdiiion with respect to such shares) of such
assets and funds.

C. Voting.

1. Except as required by law, or as otherwise pieiherein or in any amendment hereof, the entitiey power of the Corporation
with respect to all matters other than the electibdirectors shall be vested in the holders of @am Stock voting together as a single class.
Except as required by law, or as otherwise proviteein or in any amendment hereof, the entirenggtiower of the Corporation with resg
to the election of directors shall be vested inhtblelers of Common Stock voting together as a siotss.

2. Each holder of Common Stock entitled to votdlstitaevery meeting of the stockholders of the @ogtion be entitled to one vote
for each share of Common Stock registered in hleeoname on the record of stockholders.

D. Effective as of 5:00 p.m. Eastern time on Oetal®, 2011 (the “Amendment Effective Time”), evéifieen (15) shares of the
Corporation's Common Stock, par value $.01 pereshssued and outstanding immediately prior toAhreendment Effective Time (the “Old
Common Stock”), will be automatically reclassifiasland converted into one share of the Corporat@oimmon Stock, par value $.01 per
share (the “New Common Stock”).

Notwithstanding the immediately preceding sentencdyactional shares of New Common Stock shalkbeed to the holders of
record of Old Common Stock in connection with theefjoing reclassification of shares of Old Commuotks In lieu thereof, the aggregate
of all fractional shares otherwise issuable tohtblelers of record of Old Common Stock shall beeskto the Corporation's transfer agent for
the accounts of all holders of record of Old Comrtock otherwise entitled to have a fraction ohars issued to them. The sale of all of the
fractional interests will be effected by the trarsdigent as soon as practicable after the Amendaféatdtive Time on the basis of prevailing
market prices of the New Common Stock on the Newk\siock Exchange at the time of sale. After sualk and, in the case of holders of
certificated shares of Old Common Stock, upon threesmder of such stockholders' stock certificattes transfer agent will pay to such holc
of record their pro rata share of the net procekedived from the sale of the fractional interests.

Each stock certificate that, immediately priortie Amendment Effective Time, represented shar€dafCommon Stock shall, frol
and after the Amendment Effective Time, automalfcaihd without the necessity of presenting the stonexchange, represent that number
of whole shares of New Common Stock into whichghares of Old Common Stock represented by sucliicatet shall have been
reclassified (as well as the right to receive dadreu of any fractional shares of New Common &tas set forth above), provided, however,
that each holder of record of a certificate tharesented shares of Old Common Stock shall recepan surrender of such certificate, book-
entry shares representing the number of whole staridew Common Stock into which the shares of ©ddnmon Stock represented by such
certificate shall have been reclassified, as wehlmy cash in lieu of fractional shares of New Cami8tock to which such holder may be
entitled pursuant to the immediately preceding gaaph.

ARTICLE VI
PREFERRED STOCK

The Preferred Stock may be issued from time to &isberein provided in one or more series. Thegdations, relative rights,
preferences and limitations of the Preferred Staoki, particularly of the shares of each seriestifemay, to the extent permitted by law, be
similar to or differ from those of any other seri€se Board of Directors is hereby expressly gratathority, subject to the provisions of t
Article VI, to fix, from time to time before issuaa thereof, the number of shares in each seriesladdsignations, relative rights, preferer
and limitations of the shares in each such sanekjding, but without limiting the generality di¢ foregoing, the following:

A. the designation of the series and the numbshafes to constitute each series;




B. the dividend rate on the shares of each serigg]itions on which and times at which dividends gayable, whether dividends
shall be cumulative, and the preference or relgifaany) with respect to such dividends (includipgferences over dividends
on the Common Stock or any other class or classes);

C. whether the series will be redeemable (at th®of the Corporation or the holders of such ekar both, or upon the happening
of a specified event) and, if so, the redemptidogsrand the conditions and times upon which rediempnay take place and
whether for cash, property or rights, includingwséies of the Corporation or another corporation;

D the terms and amount of any sinking, retirememuchase fund;

E. the conversion or exchange rights (at the opifdhe Corporation or the holders of such shardsoth, or upon the happening ¢
specified event), if any, including the conversarexchange price and other terms of conversi@xohange;

F. the voting rights, if any (other than any votinghts that the Preferred Stock may have as aemaftiaw);
G. any restrictions on the issue or reissue orcfadelditional Preferred Stock;

H. the rights of the holders upon voluntary or ilwaary liquidation, dissolution or winding up dfe affairs of the Corporation
(including preferences over the Common Stock orathegr class or classes or series of stock); and

I. such other special rights and privileges, if dioy the benefit of the holders of Preferred Staskshall not be inconsistent with
provisions of this Restated Certificate of Incoigian.

All shares of Preferred Stock of the same seriafi bk identical in all respects, except that shafeany one series issued at diffel
times may differ as to dates, if any, from whichidénds thereon may accumulate. All shares of edeStock of all series shall be of equal
rank and shall be identical in all respects extleqt any series may differ from any other serigh wéspect to any one or more of the
designations, relative rights, preferences andditioins described or referred to in subparagraphe A inclusive above.

ARTICLE VII
DIRECTORS

A. The Board of Directors shall consist of no feulaan six persons and no more than fifteen persomssuch number shall be fixed
by, or in the manner provided in, the By-laws af tborporation.

B. At each annual meeting of the stockholders efGorporation, the date of which shall be fixecobpursuant to the By-Laws of
the Corporation, the directors shall be electeloid office for a term of one (1) year and untitswirector's successor is elected and qua
or until such director's earlier resignation or osal. No decrease in the number of directors ctutstg the Board of Directors shall shorten
the term of any incumbent director.

C. A director may be removed from office only fause and only by vote of at least a majority ofdbtstanding stock entitled to
vote in an election of directors.

D. Any vacancy on the Board of Directors, howewsulting, may be filled only by a majority of theegttors then in office, even if
less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director

ARTICLE VI
STOCKHOLDERS' VOTE




Any action required or permitted to be taken at angual or special meeting of stockholders mayakert only upon the vote of the
stockholders at an annual or special meeting doficed and called, as provided in the By-laws ef @orporation, and may not be taken by a
written consent of the stockholders.

ARTICLE IX
INDEMNIFICATION

The Corporation shall indemnify each person whariwas a director, officer or employee of the Cogpion (including the heirs,
executors, administrators or estate of such permois)or was serving at the request of the Cotpmraas a director, officer or employee of
another corporation, partnership, joint ventunesttior other enterprise, to the fullest extent pteah under applicable law.

The indemnification provided by this Article IX dhaot be deemed exclusive of any other rights hiclv any of those seeking
indemnification or advancement of expenses maynkilezl under any by-law, agreement, vote of stobttérs or disinterested directors or
otherwise, both as to action in his official cafpaeaind as to action in another capacity while hajdsuch office, and shall continue as to a
person who has ceased to be a director, officengloyee and shall inure to the benefit of thesh&recutors and administrators of such a
person.

ARTICLE X
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

A director of this Corporation shall not be perdgnkable to the Corporation or its stockholdeos fnonetary damages for breach of
fiduciary duty as a director, except for liabil{fy for any breach of the director's duty of loyaib the Corporation or its stockholders, (ii) for
acts or omissions not in good faith or which inimtentional misconduct or a knowing violationladv, (iii) under Section 174 of the
DGCL, or (iv) for any transaction from which theealttor derived an improper personal benefit. IFE&CL is amended after approval by the
stockholders of this Article X to authorize corperaction further eliminating or limiting the persd liability of directors, then the liability of
a director of the Corporation shall be eliminatedimited to the fullest extent permitted by the DGas so amended.

Any repeal or modification of the foregoing parggrdy the stockholders of the Corporation shallathbtersely affect any right or
protection of a director of the Corporation exigtat the time of such repeal or modification.

ARTICLE XI
SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings of the stockholders of the Cotpmrdor any purpose or purposes may be calleshatiane by the Board of
Directors, the President, the Chief Executive @ffior the Chairman of the Board of Directors. Sglatieetings of the stockholders of the
Corporation may not be called by any other persguecsons.

ARTICLE Xl
RATIFICATION BY STOCKHOLDERS

Any contract, transaction or act of the Corporatiof the directors, which shall be ratified bynajority of a quorum of the
stockholders then entitled to vote at any annuadting or at any special meeting called for suctppse, shall, so far as permitted by law and
by this Certificate of Incorporation, be as valitaas binding as though ratified by every stockbokhtitled to vote at such meeting.

ARTICLE Xl
AMENDMENTS OF CERTIFICATE

The Corporation reserves the right to amend, ateange or repeal any provision contained in tiist&ed Certificate of
Incorporation or in any amendment hereto by thienaéftive vote of a majority of the




outstanding stock entitled to vote thereon.

ARTICLE XIV
CREDITORS

Whenever a compromise or arrangement is proposedbe this Corporation and its creditors or ang<laef them and/or between
this Corporation and its stockholders or any ctdfsghem, any court of equitable jurisdiction withire State of Delaware may, on the
application in a summary way of this Corporatiorobany creditor or stockholder thereof on the aggion of any receiver or receivers
appointed for this Corporation under the provisiohsection 291 of Title 8 of the DGCL or on thephpation of trustees in dissolution or of
any receiver or receivers appointed for the Cotmmaunder the provisions of Section 279 of Titlef@he DGCL, order a meeting of the
creditors or class of creditors, and/or of the ldbatders or class of stockholders of the Corporatas the case may be, to be summoned in
such manner as the said court directs. If a mgjorihumber representing three-fourths in valuthefcreditors or class of creditors, and/or of
the stockholders or class of stockholders of tligo@ration, as the case may be, agree to any coniggmr arrangement and to any
reorganization of this Corporation as consequefiseich compromise or arrangement, the said compeon arrangement and the said
reorganization shall, if sanctioned by the courvtach the said application has been made, be gnain all the creditors or class of creditors,
and/or on all the stockholders or class of stoditéud, of this Corporation, as the case may beatsudon this Corporation.

ARTICLE XV
BY-LAWS

In furtherance and not in limitation of the poweanferred by statute, the Board of Directors isreggly authorized to adopt, repeal,
alter, amend or rescind the By-laws of the Corponatin addition, the Byaws of the Corporation may be adopted, repealéated, amende
or rescinded by the affirmative vote of at leastajority of the outstanding stock entitled to vtitereon.



Exhibit 12
STATEMENTS RE COMPUTATION OF RATIOS
STATEMENT REGARDING COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNIN& TO FIXED CHARGES

LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(unaudited)

Six Months Ended June 30, Fiscal Year Ended
(In millions) 2012 2011 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Loss from Continuing Operations
Before Taxes $ 178 $ (359 $ (786) $ (712) $ (623 $ (3129 $ (1,169)
Interest on Debt, Net of Capitalized
Interest 37C 317 71€ 58€ 59t 57C 60¢
Amortization of Capitalized Interest — — — — — 48 68
Portion of rents deemed representative
of the interest factor (1/3) 51 35 77 69 68 68 63
(Losses) Earnings Available for Fixe
Charges $ 24 $ 2 $ 7 % (57 $ 40 $ 374 $ (427)
Interest on Debt 37C 317 71€ 58€ 59t 57C 60¢
Preferred Dividends — — — — — — —
Interest Expense Portion of Rental
Expense 51 35 77 69 68 68 63
Total Fixed Charges $ 421 $ 35z $ 79 % 655 $ 665 $ 63 $ 672

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges — — — — — — —
Deficiency $ (17¢) $ (3549 $ (780 $ (712 $ (629 $ (264 $ (1,099




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS*
I, James Q. Crowe, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Form 10-Q of Level 3 Commuti@ss, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgitée a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in
this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduragused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ubsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial réjpgy; or caused such internal control over finahagaorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in at@oce with generally accepted accounting principles

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldsire controls and procedures and presentedsimgort our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conints procedures, as of the end of the period couryéhis report based on s
evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finaiceporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internafrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of directf@spersons performing the
equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 6, 2012

/s/ James Q. Crowe
James Q. Crowe
Chief Executive Officer

* Provide a separate certification for each ppatiexecutive officer and principal financial officof the registrant. See Rules 13a-14(a) and
15d-14(a).




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS*
[, Sunit S. Patel, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Form 1Q-of Level 3 Communications, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coray untrue statement of a material fact or omgtate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presentec
this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dainare responsible for establishing and maintaimlisclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresgused such disclosure controls and procedares designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knoy
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

b. Designed such internal control over finanaigdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assarsegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure containtsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyéhis report based on
such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dahhave disclosed, based on our most recent et@tuaf internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorsldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardiodctors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢ofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqubrt financial information;
and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that inv@dvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrast’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 6, 2012

/s/ Sunit S. Patel
Sunit S. Patel
Chief Financial Officer

* Provide a separate certification for each priatigxecutive officer and principal financial officef the registrant. See Rules 13a-14(a) and
15d-14(a).



Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Form 10-Q of Level 3 Comnaations, Inc. (the “Company”) for the three andmianths ended June 30, 20d2filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, James Q. Crowe, Chiecutive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 26Q&;

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeofi1934; an

2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of
operations of the Company.

/sl James Q. Crowe
James Q. Crowe

Chief Executive Officer
August 6, 2012




Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Form 10-Q of Level 3 Comnaations, Inc. (the “Company”) for the three andmianths ended June 30, 20d2filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), |, Sunit S. Patel, Clkimancial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 26Q&;

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeofi1934; an

2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of
operations of the Company.

/sl Sunit S. Patel
Sunit S. Patel

Chief Financial Officer
August 6, 2012




